
 

 

 

Date: 26.08.2020 

To, 

National Stock Exchange of India Ltd.  

Exchange Plaza, C-1, Block G,  

Bandra Kurla Complex,  

Bandra (E)  

Mumbai – 400 051 

 

Dear Sir / Madam, 

Sub: Submission of Annual Report and Notice of the 16th Annual General Meeting. 

Ref: Disclosure under SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015 ("Listing Regulations") 

 

Pursuant to Regulation 34 of SEBI Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015, we enclosed Annual Report and Notice of the 16th Annual General 

Meeting of the Members of our Company is held on Friday, 18th September, 2020 at 11:00 

am through Video Conferencing (VC) or Other Audio- Visual Means (OAVM), in view 

of the Covid-19 pandemic. 

We herewith enclose the Copy of the notice and annual report of Annual General Meeting 

for the financial year 2019-2020.  

Further, the Annual Report including notice of AGM as mentioned above, has also been 

made available on website of the company at www.krishnaphoschem.com. 

This is for your information and record. 

Kindly take note of the above.  

Yours faithfully, 

For Krishana Phoschem Limited  

         

   Sd/- 

(Priyanka Bansal)       

Company Secretary 

 

Enclosed: as above 

http://www.krishnaphoschem.com/
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CHAIRMAN’S MESSAGE 
 

Dear Shareholders, 
 
I am pleased to present you the 16th Annual Report of Krishana Phoschem Limited for the 
Financial Year ended 31st March, 2020. The company has been working to maximize the 
available potential to enhance the stakeholders’ value. Despite many constraints during the year, 
we have done reasonably well and reached many new milestones. 
 
Our goal has been to achieve twin objectives of improving livelihood of farmers by providing 
quality fertilizer at competitive prices and simultaneously through various tools of improving 
efficiencies, attain better performance for our shareholders.As reported last year, the company 
switched over to independent marketing and the current year was the full year where we could 
derive benefits of strengthening our marketing set up created in the group. During the year, it was 
further fine-tuned with good training, in-depth study of market through frequent interactions with 
farmers by organizing farmers meet. We arranged 750 farmers’ meets and also 10 dealer’s 
meets during the year to get feedback of the market to tune our production and quality to 
synchronize with expectations of farmers. Our ANNADATA” brand has gained name and reach 
among users of fertilizer specifically farmers and the products with this brand name get 
preference. We have also brought many variants of SSP for different types of crops as per feed-
back and happy to report record SSP fertilizer variants under our brand name. Now time has 
come when we are ready to enlarge the geographical coverage and bring larger number of 
farmers with in our ambit. To achieve this, our group has increased whole sellers to 700 as at the 
end of current year compared to 500 last year. We have strong marketing team of 30 Executives 
with an average experience of over 15 years spread across in the country. 

 

Now I come to specifics and give financial performance and other work done by your company 
during the financial year ended 31st March 2020. The Turnover for the year under review has 
reached Rs.  16294.73 lakhs recording a growth of more than 6.7% over the last year and Profits 
before tax have also witnessed good rise and closed the year with Rs. 2078.26 lakhs showing an 
increase of more than 12.75% over the last year. 
 
During 19-20, Krishana Phoschem Ltd. had aimed to build people capabilities. The integrated 
nutrient structure and agronomist teams continued to support the channel and farmer activation 
initiatives. As a result the company introduced crop specific products during the year.  
 
Safety, Health and Environment continued to remain a high priority for Company.Various 
measures were undertaken during the year focusing on health and building a safety culture 
across the organization. Company’s social commitment remains strong and it continued to 
working the areas of health and community development. 
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This was the transformative year for your company as the company got migrated from National 
Stock Exchange SME Platform to Main Board of National Stock Exchange on 21st August 2019, 
which has added lot of liquidity to our shares. 

 

The company is in expansion mode though the plans got delayed due to variety of reasons 
including delay in acquiring land from MP Govt., finalizing plants, its suppliers etc. As reported 
last year, KPL has plans to set up a DAP and NPK Complex fertilizer plants and actions have 
already been initiated in this direction. With this view in mind, KPL wants to conserve resources 
including profit earned so as ultimately increase share holders value. Despite this, as done last 
year, your directors have proposed for payment of dividend @5% which translate to Rs 0.50 per 
share as a token of appreciation for the patience and belief exhibited byshareholders. 
 
At the end of the year brought miseries in from of COVID 19 pandemic which is bound to affect 
adversely not only Indian Economy but world economy also. The country is expected to witness 
its slowest or may be negative GDP growth in 20-21. However we see redefined opportunities 
and confident that this challenge will also be met with success. 

 

I would like to congratulate the Krishana Phoschem team for delivering sustainable results 
undera challenging business environment. I would like to conclude with thanking our Board 
members for enlightening the leadership team with appropriate and timely guidance. I would also 
like to thank all our stakeholders - customers, vendors,creditors, bankers, regulatory bodies and 
above all our valued shareholders for their enduring trust and support.Let us continue to work 
together for developing long term sustainable farming solutions and bringing prosperity to the 
farmers. 
 
We will think bigger. We will think faster. But, most important of all, we will Think Better – to stay 
ahead of competition and of our times. 

 
Last but not least, I put on record hard work put in by our strong and dedicated work force led by 
the senior leadership team. We have also implemented the principles of Good Corporate 
Governance for creation of greater value and stronger perception about the Company. 

 

With Warm Regards 

 
Sd/- 
(Mahendra Kumar Ostwal) 
Chairman  
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 
   (Rs. In Lacs) 

Particulars 2019-20 2018-19 

Revenue from operation 16294.73 15271.02 

Depreciation 1170.56 1124.63 

Profit Before Tax 2078.26 1910.04 

Profit After Tax 1377.42 1351.15 

Other Comprehensive Income 0.32 0.36 

Total Comprehensive Income for the period 1377.74 1351.51 

 

Assets 

Gross Property, Plant And Equipment 15924.41 15766.44 

Net Property, Plant and Equipment 9562.19 10569.61 

Capital Work in Progress 20.98 61.31 

Non-Current Assets 168.56 65.52 

Deferred Tax Assets 0 0 

Current Assets 6003.89 6337.89 

Total 15755.62 17034.33 

 

Sources 

Equity Share capital 2490.00 2490.00 

Reserves & Surplus      9986.59 8477.70 

Non-Current Liabilities 604.20 1571.12 

Deferred Tax Liabilities 544.64 245.12 

Current Liabilities 2130.19 4250.39 

Total 15755.62 17034.33 

   

Profit Before Tax Margin (%) 12.75 12.51 

Profit After Tax Margin (%) 8.45 8.85 
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Registered Office: 5-O-20, Basement,  

R.C. Vyas Colony, Bhilwara, 311001 Rajasthan 
CIN: L24124RJ2004PLC019288 

 
Tel. No. : 01482-237104                           Fax No. : 01482-239638 
Website: www.krishnaphoschem.com                Email: secretarial@krishnaphoschem.com 

 
                                                                                      NOTICE  

NOTICE is hereby given that the 16th Annual General Meeting of the Members of Krishana 

Phoschem Limited will be held on Friday, 18th  September, 2020 at 11:00 A.M. through two – way 

Video Conferencing (“VC”) or Other Audio Visual Means (“OAVM”), to transact the following 

businesses. 

  
ORDINARY BUSINESS: 
 
1. To consider and adopt (a) the audited financial statement of the Company for the financial year 
ended March 31, 2020 and the reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon and in this 
regard, pass the following resolutions as Ordinary Resolutions: 

 

“RESOLVED THAT the audited financial statement of the Company for the financial year 
ended March 31, 2020 and the reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon laid before 
this meeting, be and are hereby considered and adopted. 
 
2. To declare dividend on equity shares for the Financial Year 2019-20. 
 
“RESOLVED THAT in terms of recommendation of Board of Directors of the company, the 
approval of the members of the company be and is hereby granted for the payment of dividend 
@Rs. 0.50 per share (i.e. 5%) on the fully paid up equity shares of Rs.10/- each of the company 
for the Year 2019-20. 
 
3. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Sunil Kothari (DIN 02056569), who retires by rotation 
and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment and in this regard, pass the following 
resolution as an Ordinary Resolution: 
 
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013,  Mr. 
Sunil Kothari (DIN 02056569), who retires by rotation at this meeting and being eligible has 
offered himself for re-appointment, be and is hereby re-appointed as a Director of the Company, 
liable to retire by rotation.” 
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SPECIAL BUSINESS: 
 
4. To approve and ratify the authority of Board of directors in fixing   remuneration of the Cost 
Auditor(s) for the financial year ending 31st March 2021 and in this regard to consider and if 
thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s) the following as an Ordinary Resolution: 
 
"RESOLVED THAT Shareholders hereby ratify the actions of the Board of Directors pursuant to 
the provisions of Section 148(3) and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read 
with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, for approving recommendation of Audit 
Committee for remuneration to M/s K.C. Moondra & Associates, Cost Auditor(s) to conduct the 
cost audit of the Company for the financial year ending 31st March 2021 at such remuneration as 
shall be fixed by the board of directors of the company. 
 
 

5. To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), to re-appoint Mr. Sunil 
Kothari as whole Time Director of the Company for the five (5) consecutive years, the following 
Resolution as a Special Resolution: 
 
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Sections 196, 197 and 203 read with Schedule V and other 
applicable provisions of if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”), The Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory 
modifications or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being) the consent of the members of the 
company be and hereby,  accorded for re- appointment of Mr. Sunil Kothari , as a Whole Time  
Director for a period of 5 (five) ) consecutive years, subject to liable to be retired by rotation in 
accordance with the provisions of Section 152 of the Act. 
 
RESOLVED FURHTER THAT a remuneration upto Rs. 10,00,000 p.a. (Rupees ten lakh per 
annum)  including all the perquisites and benefits if any, paid to Mr. Sunil Kothari , except the 
perquisites falling outside the purview of the ceiling limit of remuneration as per applicable 
provisions of Schedule V of the Act, be allowed to Mr. Sunil Kothari and in the event of 
inadequacy of profits the Board shall be authorized to adjust the above remuneration in 
accordance with the provisions of Schedule V of the Act, subject however that in the event of 
inadequacy of profits the remuneration so paid shall be subject to review. 
 
“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the total remuneration paid or payable to such directors shall 
not exceed 5% of the profits of the Company, in case of one such director and 10% in case of more 
than one such directors which shall be paid on a pro-rata basis every month or on an annual 
basis. 
 
“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorized 
to vary, change, alter, reduce, increase the amount of remuneration within the maximum ceiling 
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specified under Sections 196, 197 and 203 read with Schedule V and other applicable provisions 
of if any, of the Companies Act, 2013. 
 
“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT notwithstanding anything contained herein above, where, 
during the term of employment of the Whole Time Director & Chief Financial officer, if in any 
financial year, the Company has no profits or its profits are inadequate, unless otherwise 
approved by any Statutory Authority, as may be required, the remuneration payable to the 
whole time director including Salary, perquisites and any other allowances shall be governed 
and be subject to the conditions and ceiling provided under the provisions of Section II of Part II 
of Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013 and all other applicable provisions of Companies Act, 
2013 or such other limits as may be prescribed by the Government from time to time as minimum 
remuneration. 
 
“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT limits stipulated in this Resolution are the maximum limits and 
the Board may in its absolute discretion to pay a lower remuneration and revise the same from 
time to time within the maximum limits stipulated by the Resolution.” 
 
 
6. To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), to re-appoint Mr. 
Ashish Kothari as an Independent Director of the Company for the five (5) consecutive years, the 
following Resolution as a Special Resolution: 
 
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration 
Committee, and approval of the Board and subject to the provisions of Sections 149 and 152 any 
other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and any rules made there under read 
with Schedule IV to the Act, and the applicable provisions of the Securities and Exchange Board 
of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (including any 
statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force), Mr. Ashish 
Kothari  (DIN: 06411429), who was appointed as an Non-Executive Independent Director, be and 
is hereby re-appointed as an Independent Director of the Company, not liable to retire by 
rotation, and to hold office for a term of 5 (Five) consecutive years on the Board of the Company 
up to the conclusion of the 21st  AGM of the Company.”” 
 
 
 
                                                                                                  By Order of the Board of Directors 
Dated: 19/08/2020                                      For Krishana Phoschem Limited 
Place: Bhilwara  
 
 
                                                                                                                                                     Sd/- 

                                             (Priyanka Bansal) 
                        Company Secretary & Compliance Officer 
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NOTES: 
 

1. In view of the massive outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic, social distancing is a norm to be 
followed. The Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) of the Company is scheduled to be held on 
Friday, September 18, 2020, at 11:00 a.m. (IST) through two-way Video Conferencing (“VC”) 
or Other Audio Visual Means (‘OAVM’) and the voting for items to be transacted in the 
Notice to this AGM shall be only through remote electronic voting process or electronic 
voting during the AGM, in compliance with applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 
(the “Act”) (including any statutory modification or re-enactment thereof for the time being in 
force) read with Rule 22 of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 (the 
“Rules”), as amended from time to time, and the General Circular No. 14/ 2020 dated April 8, 
2020, the General Circular No. 17/ 2020 dated April 13, 2020, in relation to “Clarification on 
passing of ordinary and special resolutions by companies under the Companies Act, 2013 and 
the rules made thereunder on account of the threat posed by COVID-19” and General 
Circular No. 20/ 2020 dated May 5, 2020, in relation to “Clarification on holding of Annual 
General Meeting (AGM) through video Conferencing (VC) or Other Audio Visual Means 
(OAVM)” all issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of India (the “MCA 
Circulars”) and Regulation 44 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations”) read with Circular dated May 12, 2020, in relation 
to “Additional relaxation in relation to compliance with certain provisions of Listing 
Regulations - COVID-19 pandemic”. The deemed venue for the AGM will be the place from 
where the Chairman of the Board conducts the meeting. 

2. Further, pursuant to the MCA and SEBI Circulars, the Notice of the AGM along with the 
Annual Report for FY 2019-20 is sent in electronic form only to those Members whose email 
addresses are registered with the Company/ Depositories. The Notice calling the 16th AGM 
has been uploaded on the website of the Company at www.krishnaphoschem.com. The 
Notice can also be accessed from the websites of the Stock Exchange i.e. The National Stock 
Exchange of India Limited (“NSE”) at www.nseindia.com  and on the website of National 
Securities Depository Limited (“NSDL”) (agency for providing the Remote e-Voting facility) 
i.e. www.evoting.nsdl.com. 

 

3. The explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of 
the Business under Item No. 4, 5 & 6 of the accompanying notice is annexed hereto.  

 

4. In respect of Resolution at item no. 5 and   6 a statement giving  additional information on 
Directors seeking appointment/re-appointment is annexed herewith as required under SEBI 
(Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (SEBI Regulations). 

 

5. Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, a Member entitled to attend and vote 
is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote on his/her behalf and the proxy need not be 
a Member of the Company. Since this AGM is being held pursuant to the MCA Circulars 
through VC or OAVM, physical attendance of Members has been dispensed with. 

http://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
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Accordingly, in terms of the above-mentioned MCA and SEBI circulars, the facility for 
appointment of proxies by the Members will not be available for the AGM and hence the 
Proxy Form and Attendance Slip are not annexed to this Notice. 

 
6. Members attending the meeting through VC or OAVM shall be counted for the purpose of 

reckoning the quorum under Section 103 of the Companies Act 2013. 

 
7. As per the provisions of Clause 3.A.III. of the General Circular No. 20/ 2020 dated May 5, 

2020, the matters of Special Business as appearing at Item Nos. 4, 5 & 6 of the accompanying 
Notice, are considered to be unavoidable by the Board and hence, forming part of this Notice. 

 
8.  Members seeking any information or clarification are requested to send in written queries to 

the Company, in advance, before the date of the meeting by mail at 
secretarial@krishnaphoschem.com. 

 
9. Corporate members intending to send their authorized representative to attend the AGM 

through VC or OAVM or to vote through remote e-voting, pursuant to Sections 112 and 113 
of the Act, are requested to send a certified copy of the board resolution to the Scrutinizer by 
e-mail at sourabh.bapna12@gmail.com with a copy marked to evoting@nsdl.co.in, authorizing 
their representative to attend and vote on their behalf at the AGM. 

 
10. In case of joint holders attending the meeting, only such joint holder who is higher in the 

order of name will be entitled to vote. 

 
11. The Notice is being sent to all the Members, whose names appear in the Register of 

Members/List of Beneficial Owners, received from National Securities Depository Limited 
(NSDL)/Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) as on Friday, 21st August 2020. 

for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered with the Depositories, for procuring 
user id and password , Notice and Annual Report, are requested to provide their Mail id at 
secretarial@krishnaphoschem.com.  

12. The Members are requested to note that the Company is pleased to provide a two-way Video 
Conferencing Facility (VC) to view the live streaming of the proceedings of the AGM and 
facilitate participation of Members at the AGM through VC or asking their questions through 
a Chat box facility. The Members will be able to view the proceedings on NSDL’s e-Voting 
website www.evoting.nsdl.com. 

 
13. Members may use this facility by using the same login credentials as provided for remote e-

Voting. Members on the day of the AGM will login through their user ID and password on e-
Voting website of NSDL. The link will be available in Member login where the EVEN of 
Company will be displayed. On clicking this link, the Member will be able to view the 
webcasting of the AGM proceedings. The VC Facility will be available on September 18, 2020 
from 11:00 a.m. (IST) onwards till the conclusion of the Meeting. 

http://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
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14. The Members can join the AGM in the VC/OAVM mode 30 minutes before and 15 minutes 
after the scheduled time of the commencement of the Meeting by following the procedure 
mentioned in the Notice. The Members will be able to view the proceedings on NSDL’s e-
Voting website www.evoting.nsdl.com.The facility of participation at the AGM through 
VC/OAVM will be made available to at least 1,000 members on first come first served basis. 
This will not include large Shareholders (Shareholders holding 2% or more shareholding), 
Promoters, Institutional Investors, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, the Chairpersons of 
the Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders 
Relationship Committee, Auditors etc. who are allowed to attend the AGM without 
restriction on account of first come first served basis. 

 
15. Dividend on Equity Shares, as recommended by the Board of Directors for the Year ended 31st 

March, 2020 and subject to approval of members at this Annual General Meeting, will be paid 
thirty days from the date of declaration to those shareholders whose name shall appear on the 
company’s register of Members on September 09, 2020. 

 

The Shareholders, who have not claimed their Dividend in the past, are requested to write to 
the Registrar and Transfer Agent, M/s. Link Intime India Private Limited, Mumbai to claim 
the amount of Dividend.  

 

Pursuant to Section 124 of the Companies Act, 2013, if the Dividend Amount is not claimed 
within 7 Years from the date it is due for payment, such unclaimed amount will be 
transferred to Investor Education and Protection Fund and thereafter no claim shall become 
against the Company. 

 

Pursuant to the Finance Act, 2020, dividend income will be taxable in the hands of the 
Shareholders w.e.f. April 1, 2020 and the Company is required to deduct Tax At 
Source(“TDS”) from dividend paid to the Members at prescribed rates in the Income Tax Act, 
1961 (‘the IT Act’). In general, to enable compliance with TDS requirements, Members are 
requested to complete and / or update their Residential Status, PAN, Category as per the IT 
Act with their Depository Participants or in case shares are held in physical form, with the 
Company by sending documents through email at secretarial@krishnaphoschem.com on or 
before September 09, 2020.  

 
 

16. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (vide circular nos. 17/2011 and 18/2011 dated April 21 and 
April 29, 2011 respectively), has undertaken a ‘Green Initiative in Corporate Governance’ and 
allowed companies to share documents with its shareholders through an electronic mode. 
Members are requested to support this green initiative by registering / updating their e-mail 
addresses, in respect of shares held in dematerialized form with their respective Depository 
Participants and in respect of shares held in physical form with Link Intime India Private 
Limited. 

mailto:secretarial@krishnaphoschem.com
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17. Members holding shares in dematerialized form are requested to intimate all changes 
pertaining to their bank details such as bank account number, name of the bank and branch 
details, MICR code and IFSC code, mandates, nominations, power of attorney, change of 
address, change of name, e-mail address, contact numbers, etc., to their depository participant 
(DP). Changes intimated to the DP will then be automatically reflected in the Company’s 
records which will help the Company and the Company’s Registrars and Transfer Agents, 
Link Intime India Private Limited to provide efficient and better services. Members holding 
shares in physical form are requested to intimate such changes to Link Intime India Private 
Limited. 

18. Voting Through Electronic Means: The details of the process and manner of e-voting are 
explained herein below: 

 
In compliance with Sections 108 and 110 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made 
thereunder, the Company has provided the facility to the Members to exercise their votes 
electronically and vote on all resolutions through the e-voting service facility arranged by NSDL. 
The instructions for electronic voting are given in this Notice. The Members may cast their votes 
using electronic voting systems from a place other than the venue of the Annual General Meeting 
(AGM) (remote e-voting). The instructions for e-voting are given herein below. The resolutions 
passed by the Members through e-voting are deemed to have been passed as if they have been 
passed at AGM. 
 
The Members who have cast their vote by remote e-voting prior to the AGM may also attend the 
AGM but shall not be entitled to cast their vote again. 
 
The remote e-voting period commence on 15th September, 2020 (9:00 A.M.) to 17th September, 2020 
(5:00 P.M.). During the period Members’ of the Company, holding shares either in physical form 
or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date of 09th September, 2020, may cast their vote by 
remote e-voting. The remote e-voting module shall be disabled by NSDL for voting thereafter. 
Once the vote on a resolution is cast by the member, the member shall not be allowed to change it 
subsequently. 
 
The instructions for e-voting are as under:  
 
Step 1: Log-in to NSDL e-Voting system at https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ 

Step 2: Cast your vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system. 

 

Details on Step 1 are mentioned below: 

 

How to Log-into NSDL e-Voting website? 

 

(i) Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: 
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. 
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(ii) Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is 
available under ‘Shareholders’ section. 

(iii) A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password and a 
Verification Code as shown on the screen. 

Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can login at 
https://eservices.nsdl.com/ with your existing IDEAS login. Once you login to NSDL eservices 
after using your login credentials, click on e-Voting and you can proceed to Step 2 i.e. cast your 
vote electronically. 

 

(iv) Your User ID details are given below: 

Manner of holding shares i.e. Demat (NSDL 
or CDSL) or Physical 

 Your User ID is: 

a) For Members who hold shares in demat 
account with NSDL. 

8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit 
Client ID 
For example if your DP ID is IN300*** 
and Client ID is 12****** then your user 
ID is IN300***12******. 

b) For Members who hold shares in demat 
account with CDSL. 

16 Digit Beneficiary ID 
For example if your Beneficiary ID is 
12************** then your user ID is 
12************** 

c) For Members holding shares in Physical 
Form. 

EVEN Number followed by Folio 
Number registered with the company 
For example if folio number is 001*** 
and EVEN is 101456 then user ID is 
101456001*** 

  

(v) Your password details are given below: 

(a) If you are already registered for e-Voting, then you can use your existing password to 
login and cast your vote. 

(b) If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to retrieve the 
‘initial password’ which has been communicated to you. Once you retrieve your ‘initial 
password’, you need to enter the ‘initial password’ and the system will force you to change 
your password. 

(c) How to retrieve your ‘initial password’? 

(i) If your email ID is registered in your demat account or with the Company, your ‘initial 
password’ is communicated to you on your email ID. Trace the email sent to you from NSDL 
from your mailbox. Open the email and open the attachment i.e. a .pdf file. The password to 
open the .pdf file is your 8 digit client ID for NSDL account, last 8 digits of client ID for CDSL 
account or folio number for shares held in physical form. The .pdf file contains your ‘User ID’ 
and your ‘initial password’. 
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(ii) If your email ID is not registered, please follow steps mentioned below in process for those 
shareholders whose email ids are not registered  

(vi) If you are unable to retrieve the “Initial password” or have forgotten your password: 

a) Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?” (If you are holding shares in your demat 
account with NSDL or CDSL) option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com. 

b) Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in physical mode) option 
available on www.evoting.nsdl.com. 

c) If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can send a request 
at evoting@nsdl.co.in mentioning your demat account number/folio number, your PAN, 
your name and your registered address. 

d) Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for casting the votes on 
the e-Voting system of NSDL. 

(vii) After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and Conditions” by selecting on 
the check box. 

(viii) Now, you will have to click on “Login” button. 

(ix) After you click on the “Login” button, Home page of e-Voting will open. 

 

Details on Step 2 are given below: 

How to cast your vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system? 

(i) After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see the Home page of e-Voting. Click on 
e-Voting. Then, click on Active Voting Cycles. 

(ii) After click on Active Voting Cycles, you will be able to see all the companies’ “EVEN” in 
which you are holding shares and whose voting cycle is in active status. 

(iii) Select “EVEN” of company for which you wish to cast your vote. 

(iv) Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens. 

(v) Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify the 
number of shares for which you wish to cast your vote and click on “Submit” and also 
“Confirm” when prompted. 

(vi) Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed. 

(vii) You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option on 
the confirmation page. 

(viii) Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your 
vote. 

 

General Guidelines for shareholders 

1 Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send 
scanned copy (PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc. 
with attested specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory(ies) who are authorized 
to vote, to the Scrutinizer by e-mail to sourabh.bapna12@gmail.com with a copy marked to 
evoting@nsdl.co.in. 

mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in
mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in
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2 It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take 
utmost care to keep your password confidential. Login to the e-voting website will be 
disabled upon five unsuccessful attempts to key in the correct password. In such an event, 
you will need to go through the “Forgot User Details/Password?” or “Physical User Reset 
Password?” option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com to reset the password.  

 

3 In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for 
Shareholders and e-voting user manual for Shareholders available at the download section 
of www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on toll free no.: 1800-222-990 or send a request at 
evoting@nsdl.co.in 

 
4 Any person who acquires shares of the Company and becomes a Member of the Company 

after the dispatch of the Notice and holding shares as on the cut-off date, i.e. 09th 
September, 2020, may obtain the User ID and password by sending a request at 
evoting@nsdl.co.in or secretarial@krishnaphoschem.com. However, if you are already 
registered with NSDL for remote e-voting, then you can use your existing user ID and 
password for casting your vote. If you forgot your password, you may reset your 
password by using “Forgot User Details/Password” option available on 
www.evoting.nsdl.com or contact NSDL at the following Toll free no. 1800-222-990. 

 
Process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered with the depositories 
for procuring user id and password and registration of e mail ids for e-voting for the 
resolutions set out in this notice: 
 
1. In case shares are held in physical mode please provide Folio No., Name of 
shareholder, scanned copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self-attested 
scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self-attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by 
email to secretarial@krishnaphoschem.com 
 
2. In case shares are held in demat mode, please provide DPID-CLID (16 digit DPID + 
CLID or 16 digit beneficiary ID), Name, client master or copy of Consolidated Account 
statement, PAN (self-attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self-attested 
scanned copy of Aadhar Card) to secretarial@krishnaphoschem.com 
 
3. Alternatively member may send an e-mail request to evoting@nsdl.co.in for obtaining 
User ID and Password by proving the details mentioned in Point (1) or (2) as the case may 
be. 
 
Instructions for members for attending the AGM through VC/OAVM are as under: 

 

(i)  Member will be provided with a facility to attend the AGM through VC or OAVM through 
the NSDL e-Voting system. Members may access the same at 
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com under shareholders/members login by using the remote e-

mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in
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voting credentials. The link for VC or OAVM will be available in shareholders/members 
login where the EVEN of Company will be displayed. On clicking this link, Member will be 
able to attend and participate in the proceedings of the AGM. Please note that the Members 
who do not have the User ID and Password for e-Voting or have forgotten the User ID and 
Password may retrieve the same by following the remote e-Voting instructions mentioned 
in the notice to avoid last minute rush. Further members can also use the OTP based login 
for logging into the e-Voting system of NSDL. 

 
(ii)  Members are encouraged to join the Meeting through laptops for better experience. Further 

Members will be required to use internet with a good speed to avoid any disturbance 
during the meeting. Members connecting from their mobile devices or tablets or through 
laptop connecting via mobile hotspot may experience audio or video loss due to fluctuation 
in their respective network. It is therefore recommended to use stable Wi-Fi or LAN 
connection to attend the AGM without any interruption. 

 
(iii)  Facility of joining the meeting shall be open 30 minutes before the time scheduled for the 

meeting and shall be closed 15 minutes after such scheduled time and will be available on 
first come first served basis. 

 
(iv) Shareholders who would like to express their views/ask questions during the meeting may 

register themselves as a speaker may send their request mentioning their name, demat 
account number/folio number, email id, mobile number at 
secretarial@krishnaphoschem.com. 
 

(v) Shareholders who would like to express their views/have questions may send their 
questions in advance mentioning their name demat account number/folio number, email 
id, mobile number at secretarial@krishnaphoschem.com. The same will be replied by the 
company suitably. 
 

(vi) Those shareholders who have registered themselves as a speaker will only be allowed to 
express their views/ask questions during the meeting. 

 
 Other Instructions 
 

(vii) The voting rights of shareholders (for voting through remote e-Voting before the AGM and 
remote e-Voting during the AGM) shall be in proportion to their shares of the paid-up 
equity share capital of the Company as on the cut-off date, which is September 9, 2020. A 
person whose name is recorded in the Register of Members or in the Register of Beneficial 
Owners maintained by the Depositories as on the cut-off date only shall be entitled to avail 
the facility of remote e-voting as well as voting at the AGM. 
 

(viii) Any person who is not a member as on the cutoff- date should treat this Notice for 
information only. 
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(ix)  The e-voting period commences on Tuesday, September 15, 2020 at 9.00 a.m. (IST) and ends 
Thursday, September 17, 2020 at 5.00 p.m. (IST) during this period, shareholders of the 
Company, holding shares in physical form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off 
date, i.e. September 9, 2020, may cast their vote electronically. The e-voting module shall be 
disabled by NSDL for voting. 

 
(x) Members who are registered with NSDL for e-voting can use their existing user Id and 

password for casting their votes. 
 

(xi) The Members who have cast their vote by remote e-voting prior to the AGM may also 
attend/ participate in the AGM through VC or OAVM but shall not be entitled to cast their 
vote again. 

 
(xii) Any person, who acquires shares of the Company and becomes a Member of the Company 

after dispatch of the Notice and holding shares as of the cut-off date, may obtain the login 
ID and password by sending a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in. However, if he/she is already 
registered with NSDL for remote e-voting then he/she can use his/ her existing User ID 
and password for casting the vote. 

 
(xiii) Mr. Sourabh Bapna, Practicing Company Secretary (Membership No. 51505 & CP No. 

19968) has been appointed as the Scrutinizer by the Board for providing facility to the 
Members of the Company to scrutinize remote e-Voting process before the AGM as well as 
remote e-Voting during the AGM in a fair and transparent manner. 

 
(xiv) The Chairman shall, at the AGM, at the end of discussion on the resolutions on which 

voting is to be held, allow voting, by use of remote e-voting system for all those Members 
who are present during the AGM through VC/OAVM but have not cast their votes by 
availing the remote e-Voting facility. 

 
(xv) The Scrutinizer shall, immediately after the conclusion of voting at the AGM, unblock the 

votes cast and make, not later than 48 hours of conclusion of the AGM, a consolidated 
Scrutinizer’s Report of the total votes cast in favour or against, if any, to the Chairman or a 
person authorized by him in writing, who will acknowledge the receipt of the same and 
declare the result of the voting forthwith. 

 
(xvi) The results will be declared within 48 hours of conclusion of the Annual General Meeting. 

The results declared along with the Scrutinizer’s Report shall be placed on the Company’s 
website www.krishnaphoschem.com and on the website of NSDL: www.evoting.nsdl.com 
immediately after the result is declared. The Company shall simultaneously forward the 
results to The National Stock Exchange of India Limited (“NSE”) where the shares of the 
Company are listed. 

 
(xvii) Subject to receipt of requisite number of votes, the resolutions shall be deemed to be passed 

on the date of AGM i.e. Friday, September 18, 2020. 
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(xviii) Since the AGM will be held through VC or OAVM, the Route Map is not annexed in this 

Notice. 
 

 
 
                                                                                                 By Order of the Board of Directors 
Dated: 19/08/2020                                         For Krishana Phoschem Limited 
Place: Bhilwara 
 
                                                                                                                                   Sd/- 
                                          (Priyanka Bansal) 
                                                                                             Company Secretary & Compliance Officer 
 
                                                                          
 
                Explanatory Statement Pursuant To Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 
 

Item No. 4 
 
The Board of Directors of the Company, on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, 
approved the appointment and remuneration of M/s K.C. Moondra & Associates, Cost 
Accountant, to conduct the cost audit of the Company for the financial year ending 31st March, 
2021. In terms of the provisions of Section 148(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 14(a) 
(ii) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, the remuneration payable to the Cost 
Auditor is required to be ratified by the Members of the Company. Accordingly, consent of the 
Members is sought to ratify the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors.  
 
None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel and their relatives, are concerned or interested 
(financially or otherwise) in this Resolution. 
 
The Board commends the Ordinary Resolution set out at Item no. 4 for the approval of Members. 
 
 

Item No. 5 
 
The Company has gone in for a major re-organisation with the objectives of accelerating growth 
and furthering its strategic goals. This strategic re-alignment will enable the Company to focus 
on growth opportunities. The Board of Directors of the Company has subject to the provisions of 
Section 196,197, and all other applicable provisions if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read with 
schedule V of the said Act, appointed Sh. Sunil Kothari as Whole Time Director and Chief 
Financial officer with a liability to retire by rotation to be determined in accordance with the 
provisions of Companies Act, 2013 for a period of five years. 
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Sh. Sunil Kothari is a Chartered Accountant by qualification. He is associated with our Company 
since 2008. He assisted in managing the financial matters of the company. He has been appointed 
as the Chief Financial Officer of the Company with effect from July 16, 2014 and Director with 
effect from February 14, 2008. He is young and dynamic person, having 13 years’ experience and 
he is presently looking into the financial and technical matters of the Company. 
 
Salary up to 10 Lacs per annum including all the perquisites and benefits if any, paid. Total 
remuneration contemplated as above payable to Whole Time Director of the Company shall not 
exceed 5% profit of the Company accordance with the section 198 and 309 of companies Act 1956 
all other applicable provisions of Companies Act, 2013 (if any) in case of one such director and 
10% in case of more than one such directors which shall be paid on a pro-rata basis every month 
or on an annual basis. 
 
During the term of employment of the Whole Time Director, if in any financial year, the 
Company does not earn any profits or earns inadequate profits as contemplated under the 
provisions of Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 and all other applicable provisions of 
Companies Act, 2013 unless otherwise approved by any Statutory Authority; the remuneration 
shall be paid as per the conditions and monetary ceiling prescribed in Schedule V to the 
Companies Act, 2013 or any re-enactment thereof and all other applicable provisions of 
Companies Act, 2013. 
 
In compliance with the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, Special Resolution as 
per the terms set out in Item No 5 of the accompanying Notice is being placed before the 
members in the Annual General Meeting for their consent thereon. 
 
None of the Directors of the Company except Sh. Sunil Kothari are, in any way, concerned or 
interested in the resolution. 
 
The Directors recommend the resolution for approval of members. 
 
 
Item No. 6  
 
The Board of Directors has re-appointed Mr. Ashish Kothari as a Non-Executive Independent 
Director from 19th August 2020 pursuant to Section 149, 152 of the Companies Act, 2013.  
 
In accordance with Section 149 and 152 read with Schedule IV of the Companies’ Act, 2013 the 
Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) and all other applicable provisions, that every 
Listed Company is required that at least half of the board of directors shall comprise of 
independent directors, so for giving the effect and to adhere to the section Company has 
appointed Mr. Ashish Kothari, not liable to retire by rotation and subject to the approval of 
members, to hold office for a term of 5 (Five) consecutive years up to the conclusion of 21st AGM 
of the company. 
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The Company has received from Mr. Ashish Kothari consent in writing to act as Director in Form 
DIR-2 pursuant to Rule 8 of the Companies (Appointment & Qualification of Directors) Rules, 
2014; intimation in Form DIR-8 pursuant to Rule 14 of the Companies (Appointment & 
Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 to the effect that they are not disqualified in accordance 
with sub-section (2) of Section 164 of the Companies Act, 2013 and declaration that he meet the 
criteria of independence as provided in Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013.  
 
A brief profile of Mr. Ashish Kothari, including nature of her expertise, is provided in the notice. 
 
In the opinion of the Board, Mr. Ashish Kothari fulfills the conditions for their appointment as 
Independent Directors as specified in the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly the Board, 
recommends the passing of the Special Resolution as set out in the Item no. 6 of the Notice. 
 
None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel and their relatives, Except Mr. Ashish 
Kothari, being an appointee, are concerned or interested (financially or otherwise) in this 
Resolution. 
 
                                                                                                                 By Order of the Board 
Dated: 19/08/2020                                                           For Krishana Phoschem Limited 
Place: Bhilwara 
 
                                                                                                                                          Sd/- 
                                                 (Priyanka Bansal) 
                                                                                             Company Secretary & Compliance Officer 
                                            
           
 
INFORMATION PURSUANT TO REGULATION 36(3) OF THE SEBI (LISTING 
OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURES REQUIREMENTS) REGULATION, 2015  
 
As required under the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosures Requirements) Regulation, 2015 
the particulars of Directors who are proposed to be appointed/reappointed at the forthcoming 
Annual General Meeting are as follows: 

 
Appointment / Reappointment 
1. Mr. Sunil Kothari (DIN 02056569) retires by rotation at the forthcoming Annual General 

Meeting and is eligible for reappointment.  
 
Mr. Sunil Kothari aged 44 years, is the Whole Time Director & Chief Financial Officer of our 
Company. He is a Chartered Accountant by qualification. He is associated with our Company 
since 2008. He assisted in managing the financial matters of the company. He has been appointed 
as the Chief Financial Officer of the Company with effect from July 16, 2014 and Director with 
effect from February 14, 2008. He is young and dynamic person, having 13 years’ experience and 
he is presently looking into the financial and technical matters of the Company. 
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Mr. Sunil Kothari is not a relative to the Chairman and Managing Director.  

 
Mr. Sunil Kothari is a Whole Time Director of Krishana Phoschem Limited. He is a Member of 
Corporate Social Responsibility Committees of the Board of Company. 
 

 Sh. Sunil Kothari does not holds shares of the Company. 
 
2. Reappointment of Whole time director 
 
Mr. Sunil Kothari aged 44 years, is the Whole Time Director & Chief Financial Officer of our 
Company. He is a Chartered Accountant by qualification. He is associated with our Company 
since 2008. He assisted in managing the financial matters of the company. He has been appointed 
as the Chief Financial Officer of the Company with effect from July 16, 2014 and Director with 
effect from February 14, 2008. He is young and dynamic person, having 13 years’ experience and 
he is presently looking into the financial and technical matters of the Company. 

 
Mr. Sunil Kothari is not a relative to the Chairman and Managing Director.  

 
Mr. Sunil Kothari is a Whole Time Director of Krishana Phoschem Limited. He is a Member of 
Corporate Social Responsibility Committees of the Board of Company. 
 

 Sh. Sunil Kothari does not holds shares of the Company. 
 
 
3. To Re- Appointment of Mr. Ashish Kothari as an Non- Executive Independent Director of the 
Company. 

 
Mr. Ashish Kothari aged 36 years is Non-Executive Independent Director of our Company and 
was originally appointed as Additional Non-Executive Independent Director on March 2, 2015 and 
later regularized as Non-Executive Director for a period of 5 years vide Extra-Ordinary General 
Meeting held on September 21, 2015. He holds Master of Commerce degree. He has vast 
experience in the field of synthetics, Yarn, project & finance. 

 
He is a Chairman of Audit Committee, member of Stakeholders Relationship Committee, member 
of Nomination and Remuneration Committee, and also member of Corporate Social Responsibility 
Committee of Company. 

 
Mr. Ashish Kothari holds 4000 shares of the Company. 
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 DIRECTORS’ REPORT 

For the Year 2019-20 
 

Dear Members,  
 
Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the 16th Annual Report on the business and operations 
of the Company together with the Audited Accounts of the Company for the year ended 31st March, 
2020. 
 
FINANCIAL RESULT 
The summary of financial results for the year and appropriation of divisible profits is given below:                                                                                                                                

                                                                                                                                                    (Rs. in Lacs) 

Particulars 2019-2020 2018-2019 

Turnover 16294.73 15271.02 

Profit Before Taxation 2078.26 1910.04 

Taxation 700.84 558.89 

Profit /(Loss) after Tax 1377.42 1351.15 

Profit Before Tax Margin (%) 12.75 12.51 

Profit After Tax Margin (%) 8.45 8.85 

 
Note: The above Financial Statements as per Ind- AS. For the purpose of transitioning to Ind- AS, 
the Company has followed guidance prescribed in Ind- AS 101, “First Time Adoption of Indian 
Accounting Standards”, with effect from April 1, 2018, as the transition date.  

 
STATE OF COMPANY'S AFFAIR: 
 
During the period under review the company has achieved turnover of Rs. 16294.73 lakhs with 
production of 68642 M.T. of Beneficiated Rock Phosphate, 102381 M.T. of Single Super Phosphate,  
1070 MT of H.Acid & Other Dyes Intermediate Products, 64015 M.T. of Sulphuric Acid, Oleum, 
Coloro Sulphonic Acid, Liquid SO3  and other Products. 
  
The profit of the company before tax is Rs. 2078.26 lakhs and profit after tax is Rs. 1377.42 lakhs. 
 
CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS OF COMPANY 
During the year under review, there is no change in the nature of business of Company. 
 
LISTING OF THE COMPANY 

The Shares of your Company were Listed on Platform of “National Stock Exchange”. The annual 

Listing Fees for the Year 2020-21 has been Paid to the exchange. 
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SHARE CAPITAL  

During the year ended 31st March 2020, there was no change in the issued and subscribed capital of 

the Company, the outstanding capital as on 31st March 2020 continues to be 2490.00 Lakhs 

comprising of 249 Lakhs shares of 10/- each. 

 

ANNUAL RETURN (SECTION 92): 

The information required pursuant to the provisions of Section 134 (3) (a) and Section 92 (3) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 12 of Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 
2014, the extract of the Annual Return in Form MGT-9 for the financial year ended on March 31st , 
2020 is provided in Annexure I forming part of this report and also disclosed on the website of the 
Company viz. http://www.krishnaphoschem.com. 
 
 

STATUTORY AUDITORS’ & STATUTORY AUDITORS’ REPORT 
 

The Company has appointed M/s. Rajneesh Kanther & Associates Statutory Auditors of the 

Company for a term of 05 years from the conclusion of 14th annual general meeting till the 

conclusion of 18th AGM held in the year 2022. 

 

The Auditor’s Report is self-explanatory and therefore, do not call for any further comments/ 

clarifications and Auditor’s report does not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse 

remarks. 

 

SECRETARIAL AUDITOR & SECRETARIAL AUDITORS’ REPORT 
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies 
(Appointment & Remuneration of Managerial personnel) Rules, 2014, the company has Re-
appointed M/s Sourabh Bapna & Associates, a Proprietorship firm of company Secretaries in 
practice to undertake the Secretarial Audit of the Company for financial year 2020-2021. The 
Secretarial Audit report for financial year 2019-20 received from Sourabh Bapna & Associatesis 
provided in Annexure II forming part of this report.  
 
The Secretarial Audit report received from M/s Sourabh Bapna & Associates does not contain any 
qualification, reservation or adverse remarks. 
 
COST AUDITOR 
M/s. K. C. Moondra & Associates, Cost Accountant, was appointed as Cost Auditors of your 
Company for FY 2020-2021. 
 

In accordance with the provisions of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies 
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, and on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, the Board 
has Re-appointed M/s K.C. Moondra & Associates, Cost Accountants (Registration No. 101814),  at 
such remuneration as fixed by board of directors to conduct the audit of the cost records of the 

http://www.krishnaphoschem.com/
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Company for the financial year ending 31stMarch, 2021. The appointment and the remuneration of 
the Cost Auditor is required to be ratified subsequently by the Members of the Company and 
further subject to the approval of the Central Government. 
 
INTERNAL AUDITOR & AUDITORS’ REPORT 
As per section 138 of The Companies Act 2013 read with Rule 13 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 
2014, the company has Re-appointed M/s Sourabh Bapna & Associates, Practicing Company 
Secretaries as Internal Auditor to conduct Internal Audit for the Financial Year 2020-2021. The 
Company has received their consent for Re-appointment. 
 
The Internal Audit Report is received by the Company and the same is reviewed and approved by 
the Audit Committee and Board of Directors for the year 2019-2020. All the observations made by 
the Internal Auditors have been attended to. 

 
INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM 
The company has in place an adequate internal control system, which is commensurate with the 
size, scale and complexity of the company. The internal auditors independently evaluate the 
adequacy of internal controls and concurrently audit the majority of the transactions in value terms. 
Independence of the audit compliance is ensured by the direct reporting of Internal Audit Division 
and Internal Auditors to the Audit Committee of the Board. 
 
During the period under review the Internal Financial Control were tested and no reportable 
material weakness in the design or operation were observed. 
 
RESERVES 
During the Year under review, The Board of Director of company have recommended to transfer 
Rs. 1227.32 lakhs to surplus & general reserve. With this, the reserve & surplus has increased to Rs. 
8878.16 lakhs. 
 
DIVIDEND  

After considering earnings, requirement for funds and with the objective of rewarding the 
Shareholder’s the Board has recommended final dividend of 5% being Rs. 0.50 per equity share of 
Rs. 10/- each for the financial year 2019-2020, subject to approval at the ensuing Annual General 
Meeting.  
 
EMERGENCE OF COVID-19  
Towards the end of the financial year, the World Health Organization (WHO) declared Covid-19 a 
pandemic and the outbreak. Covid-19 is seen having an unprecedented impact on people and 
economies worldwide. The Company is taking all necessary measures in terms of mitigating the 
impact of the challenges being faced in the business. The Company is working towards being 
resilient in order to sail through the current situation.  
 
In order to support the Central and State Governments and the community at large, the Company 
has voluntary contributions to Governments Initiatives towards the said purpose.  
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The Company operates its business in conformity with the highest ethical and moral standards and 
employee centricity. In view of the outbreak of the pandemic, the Company undertook timely and 
essential measures to ensure the safety and well-being of its employees at all its plant locations, 
various branch offices and the head office. The Company observed all the government advisories 
and guidelines thoroughly and in good faith. 

 
DEPOSITS: 

During the year, the Company has not accepted deposits from the public under Chapter V of the 
Companies Act, 2013. Your Company has not defaulted in repayment of deposits or payment of 
interest during the year. There was no public deposit outstanding as on March 31, 2020. 
 
REPORTING OF FRAUDS BY AUDITORS, IF ANY: 
No fraud has been reported by auditors under section 143 (12) of the companies act 2013.  
 
NO DEFAULT: 

The company has not defaulted in payment of interest and/or repayment of loan to any of the 

financial institutions and/or bank. 

 

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 
In accordance with provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and company’s Articles of Association, Sh. 

Sunil Kothari (DIN: 02056569), Director of the Company, retire by rotation and being eligible, offers 

himself for re-appointment. The Board recommends his  re-appointment. 

 

During the year, Mr. Praveen Ostwal Managing Director of the Company, Mr. Sunil Kothari ,Whole 
Time Director & Chief Financial Officer and Ms. Priyanka Bansal, Company Secretary of the 
Company were designated as Key Managerial Personnel of the Company pursuant to Section 203 of 
the Companies Act, 2013. 
 
 

NUMBER OF MEETING OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS: 

The Board of Directors duly met 10 (Ten) times on 08th April 2019, 10th May 2019, 27th June 2019, 

23rd  August  2019, 16th September  2019, 13th November 2019 , 02nd December 2019, 13th January 

2020, 03rd February 2020, and 03rd March  2020 in the Financial Year 2019-20 in respect of each 

meetings, proper notices were given and the proceedings were properly recorded and signed in the 

Minutes Book maintained for the purpose. No resolution was passed by circulation. 

 

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES 
The information required pursuant to the Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 
5 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 in 
respect of ratio of remuneration of each director to the median remuneration of the employees of the 
Company is provided in Annexure III forming part of this report. 
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ENERGY CONSERVATION, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE 
EARNINGS AND OUTGOING 
The details as required under section 134 (3) (m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Rule 8 of 

Companies (Account) Rule, 2014 for conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign 

Exchange earnings and outgo are  given in Annexure IV forming part of this report. 

 

PARTICULAR OF LOAN, GUARANTEE AND INVESTMENT UNDER SECTION 186: 

The information required for loans given, investment made or guarantee given or security 

provided under section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the rule 11 of Companies 

(Meetings of Board and its power) Rule, 2014 is given in Annexure V forming part of this report. 

 
RISK MANAGEMENT: 

Proper Risk Management Practices have been followed for the purpose of risk identification, 
analysis, response planning, and monitoring, controlling, and reporting. Although, all risks cannot 
be eliminated, but mitigation and contingency plans have been developed to lessen their impact if 
they occur. 

 
 
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION UNDER SECTION 188  
All related party transactions that were entered into during the financial year were on arm’s length 
basis and were in the ordinary course of the business. There are no materially significant related 
party transactions made by the company during the financial year which were in the conflict of 
interest of the company.  
 
Information on transactions with related parties pursuant to Section 134(3)(h) of the Act read with 
rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 are given in Annexure VI in Form AOC-2 and 
the same forms part of this report. 
 
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS REPORTS 
The Corporate Governance and Management Discussion & Analysis Report, as required pursuant 
to the SEBI ((Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, is provided in 
Annexure VII and Annexure VIII   respectively forming part of this report. 
 
DECLARATION OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS:  
The Company has received necessary declaration from each Independent Director under Section 
149(7) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the effect that they meet the criteria of independence laid down 
in Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013. The terms and conditions for appointment of the 
Independent Directors are incorporated on the website of the Company. 
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BOARD EVALUATION:  
Pursuant to the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Listing regulations, the 
Board has carried out an annual performance evaluation of its own, working of its Committees and 
the Directors. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee has carried out evaluation of every 
Director. The Independent Directors evaluated performance of the Non-Independent Directors, the 
Board as whole and the Chairperson of the Company. 
 
COMMITTEES OF BOARD:    
The Board of Directors of your Company has constituted the following committees in terms of the 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosures 
Requirements), Regulation, 2015: 
   
AUDIT COMMITTEE DISCLOSURE UNDER SECTION 177: 

The Audit Committee of the Company consists of 2 Independent Directors and 1 Executive Director. 
The Chairman of the Audit Committee is financially literate and majority of them having accounting 
or related financial management experience. Company Secretary acts as Secretary to the Committee.  
 

The following Directors are the members of Audit Committee. 
(1) Shri Ashish Kothari    Chairman 
(2) Shri Pradeep Agrawal    Member 
(3) Shri Praveen Ostwal    Member 
 

During the year the Committee had 4 Meetings i.e. on 10th April 2019, 31st July 2019, 10th October 
2019 and 03rd February  2020.  
 
NOMINATION & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE DISCLOSURE UNDER SECTION 178: 
In  pursuant  to  the  provisions  of  section  178 (4) of  the Companies Act,  2013, Nomination and 
Remuneration Policy recommended by the Nomination and Remuneration committee is duly 
approved by the Board of Directors of the Company and is given in Annexure IX forming part of 
this report. 
 

The following Directors are the members of Nomination and Remuneration Committee. 
(1) Shri Pradeep Agrawal    Chairman 
(2) Shri Ashish Kothari    Member 
(3) Smt. Priyanka Surana    Member 

 

The Committee meets as and when any remuneration is to be fixed for any Directors /KMPs. During 
the year the Committee had not conducted any  Meetings . 
 
INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS COMMITTEE: 
 
The following are the members of independent directors committee: 
(1) Shri Pradeep Agarwal        Chairman 
(2) Shri Ashish Kothari                                     Member 
(3) Smt. Priyanka Surana                                  Member 
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During the year  one Independent Directors Committee Meetings were held on 18th March 2020 
 
STAKEHOLDER RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE: 
 
The following Committee of Directors looks after the Investor Grievances: 
(1) Shri Pradeep Agarwal        Chairman 
(2) Shri Ashish Kothari                                     Member 
(3) Shri Praveen Ostwal                                    Member 
 
During the year the 4 Stakeholder Relationship Committee Meetings were held on 06th May 2019, 
31st August 2019, 31st  October 2019, And 03rd February 2020. 
 
CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY: 
In  pursuant  to  the  provisions  of  section  135  and  schedule VII  of  the Companies Act,  2013, 
CSR Committee of  the Board of Directors was formed  to recommend (a)  the policy on Corporate 
Social Responsibility (CSR) and (b) implementation of the CSR Projects or Programs to be 
undertaken by the Company as per CSR Policy for consideration and approval by the Board of 
Directors. CSR Policy is disclosed on the website of the Company viz. 
http://www.krishnaphoschem.com. 
 
As per provision of new enacted Company Act, 2013, the Board of Directors have framed Corporate 
Social Responsibilities Committee having the following members:-  
(1) Shri Pradeep Agarwal                     Chairman  
(2) Shri Ashish Kothari                          Member  
(3) Shri Sunil Kothari                             Member 
 

The company has incurred an expenditure as per recommendation of committee a sum of Rs. 24.84 
Lacs during the year 2019-20 as against Rs. 21.89 Lacs (2% of Average Net profit of the company 
made during preceding three financial year) as per provisions of Company Act, 2013.  
 
 The Company has been able to spent entire funds committed for CSR Activities.  
 
The Company shall always endeavor to ensure full utilization of the allocated CSR budget. 
 
Your company as part of its responsibility towards society has been taking welfare measures from 
time to time.  
 
During the year the Committee had 2 Meetings i.e. on 30th September 2019, and 18th March 2020. 

The CSR Report for the financial year ended on March 31st, 2020 is provided in Annexure X forming 
part of this report. 

SUBSIDIARY, JOINT VENTURE AND ASSOCIATE COMPANY: 
The Company does not have any Subsidiary, Joint Venture and Associate Company. 

http://www.krishnaphoschem.com/
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DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE 
(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013 
The Company has in place an Anti Sexual Harassment Policy in line with the requirement of The 
Sexual Harassment of Women at the Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. 
Internal Complaints Committee (ICC) has been set up to redress complaints received regarding 
sexual harassment. All employees (permanent, contractual, temporary, trainee) are covered under 
this policy. 
 

The following is a summary of sexual harassment complaints received and disposed off during the 
year 2019-20. 
No. of complaints received:  Nil 
No. of complaints disposed off: Nil 
 
DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT 
Pursuant to the requirement under Section 134 (3) (c) & 134 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013 with 
respect to Directors Responsibility Statement, it is hereby confirmed that: 
 

(a) In the preparation of the annual accounts for the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2020, the 
applicable accounting standards had been followed along with proper explanation relating to 
material departures;  
 

(b) The directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made 
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of 
the state of affairs of the company at the end of the financial year and of the profit and loss of 
the company for the year under review; 

 
 

(c) The directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate 
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of 
the company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities; 

 

(d) The directors had prepared the annual accounts for the financial year ended 31st March, 2020 
on a going concern basis; and 

 
(e) That the Directors had  laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the company 

and that such internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively. and 
 

(f) The directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all        
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.  

 
HEALTH, SAFETY, QUALITY AND ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION  
Your Company is ISO 9001:2015 certified and maintains high quality of product and processes. The 
quality assurance is ensured at all stages of manufacturing processes, maintenance and support 
services. Quality reviews are regularly conducted and feedback from end users (farmers) is 
accorded utmost importance. Sophisticated instruments are in place for monitoring of critical 
quality parameters. 
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MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS: 
There have been no material changes and commitments, affecting the financial position of the 
Company which have occurred between the end of the financial year of the Company to which the 
financial statements relate and the date of this report. 
 
SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS 
There are no significant material orders passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunal that would 
impact the going concern status of the Company and its future operations. 
 
WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY / VIGIL MECHANISM 
The Board of Directors has adopted Whistle Blower Policy. The Whistle Blower Policy aims for 
conducting the affairs in a fair and transparent manner by adopting highest standards of 
professionalism, honesty, integrity and ethical behavior. A mechanism has been established for 
employees to report concerns about unethical behavior, actual or suspected fraud or violation of 
Code of Conduct and Ethics. It also provides for adequate safeguards against the victimization of 
employees who avail of the mechanism and allows direct access to the Chairperson of the audit 
committee in exceptional cases. 
The whistle Blower Policy has been uploaded on the website of the Company 
(www.krishnaphoschem.com). 
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Managing Director 
Whole Time 
Director 
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ANNEXURE-I 
Form No. MGT-9 
 
As on the financial year ended on 31.03.2020 
 

[Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies 
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014] 
 
REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS 

i) CIN L24124RJ2004PLC019288 

ii) Registration Date 14/05/2004 

iii) Name of the Company Krishana Phoschem Limited 

iv) Category / Sub-Category of the Company Public Company 
Company Limited by Share 

v) Address of the Registered office and contact 
details 

5-O-20, Basement, R.C. Vyas Colony 
Bhilwara (Raj.), 311001 

vi) Whether listed company (Yes / No) Yes 
National Stock Exchange 
India Limited (NSE ) 

vii) Name, Address and Contact details of 
Registrar and Transfer Agent, if any 

Link Intime India Private Limited  
C- 101, 247 Park, L.B.S. Marg, 
Vikhroli (West), Mumbai – 400083 
 Maharashtra, India 
Tel No. :- 91-22-49186000 
Fax:- 91-22-49186060 
Website:- www.linkintime.co.in 
Email:-rnt.helpdesk@linkintime.co.in 

 
PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY 
All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the company 
shall be stated – 
 

S. 
No. 

Name and Description  of main products / 
services 

NIC Code of the Product/ 
service 

%  to total 
turnover of 
the company 

1 Fertilizers 20122 62.58 

2 Chemicals 20119 21.04 

3 Chemicals 20112 16.37 

 
PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES – 
 

S. 
No. 

Name and 
Address of the 
Company 

CIN/GLN Holding/ 
Subsidiary/ 
Associate 

% of 
Shares 
Held 

Applicable 
Section 

1 Ostwal 
Phoschem 
(India) Limited 

 L26933RJ1989PLC032188 Holding 63.39 Section 2(46) of 
the Companies Act 
,2013 

 

http://www.linkintime.co.in/
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SHARE HOLDING PATTERN 
(Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity) 

Category of 
Shareholders 

No. of Shares held at the 
beginning of the year 

No. of Shares held at the end of 
the year 

% 
Chang
e 
during 
the 
year 

  

P
h

y
s
ic

a
l 

Demat Total % of 
Tota
l 
Sha
res 

Demat 

P
h

y
s
ic

a
l 
 Total % of 

Total 
Shares 

A. Promoters                   

1. Indian             
 

  

Individual/ HUF 0 708500 708500 2.85 708500 0 708500 2.85 - 

Central Govt  - -  -  -  -  - - - -  

State Govt (s)  - -  -  -  -  - - - -  

Bodies Corp. 0 15026750 15026750 60.34 16005402 0 16005402 64.28 3.94 

Banks / FI  - -  -  -  
 

   -  

Any Other  - -  -  -  -     -  

Sub-total (A) 
(1):- 0 15735250 15735250 63.19 16713902 0 16713902 67.13   3.94 

2. Foreign                  

NRIs -
Individuals  - -  -  -       

Other 
Individuals  - -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  

Bodies Corp.  - -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  

Banks / FI  - -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  

Any Other  - -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  

Sub-total (A) 
(2):-  - -  -  -  - - - - - 

Total 
shareholding 
of Promoter 
(A) = 
(A)(1)+(A)( 2) 0 15735250 15735250 63.19 16713902 0 16713902 67.13 3.94 

B. Public 
Shareholding                   

1 Institutions                   

Mutual Funds  - -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  

Banks / FI  - -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  

Central Govt  - -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  

State Govt (s)  - -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  

Venture Capital 
Funds  - -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  

Insurance 
Companies  - -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  
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FIIs  - -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  

Foreign 
Venture Capital 
Funds  - -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  

Others 
(specify)  - -  -  -  

 
-      

Sub-total 
(B)(1):-  - -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  

2 Non-
Institutions                   

a) Bodies Corp. 
 

  
      

Indian 0 4864699 4864699 19.54 4137617 - 4137617 
                      
16.61     -2.93 

Overseas  - -  -  -  -   - - -  

b) Individuals                

Individual 
shareholders 
holding nominal 
share capital 
up to Rs. 1 lakh  - 895990 895990 3.60 807150 - 807150 3.24 -0.36 

Individual 
shareholders 
holding nominal 
share capital in 
excess of Rs 1 
lakh 0 3372751 3372751 13.55 3237331  3237331 13.00    -0.54 

Others 
(specify)  - -  -  -  -   - - -  

Clearing 
Members  31310 31310 0.12 - - - - -0.12 

NRI - - - - 4000 - 4000 0.01      0.01 

NRI(Non 
Repatriable)          

Sub-total 
(B)(2):-  9164750 9164750 36.81 8186098  8186098          32.87    -3.94 

Total Public 
Shareholding 
(B)=(B)(1)+ 
(B)(2)  9164750 9164750 36.81 8186098  8186098         32.87    -3.94 

C. Shares held 
by Custodian 
for GDRs & 
ADRs  - -  -  -  -  -   -  

Grand Total 
(A+B+C)  24900000 24900000 100 24900000 -  24900000 100 -  
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Shareholding of Promoters 

S 
No. 
 

Shareholder’s  
Name 
 

Shareholding at the 
beginning of the year 

 

Shareholding at the end of the 
year 

 

 
% 

change in 
sharehol

ding  
during 

the year 
 

 

  No. of 
Shares 

% of 
total 
Shar
es of 
the 
comp
any 

% of 
Shar
es 
Pled
ged / 
encu
mber
ed to 
total 
shar
es 

No. of 
Shares 

% of total 
Shares of 
the 
company 

% of 
Shares 
Pledge
d / 
encum
bered 
to total 
shares 

1 
 

Pankaj Ostwal 5000 
 

0.02 
 

-  
 

5000 
 

0.02 
 

-  
 

No 
Change 

2 
 

Praveen 
Ostwal 

678500 
 

2.72 
 

- 
 

678500 
 

2.72 
 

-  
 

No 
Change 

3 
 

Nitu Ostwal 2500 
 

0.01 
 

-  
 

2500 
 

0.01 
 

-  
 

No 
Change 

4 
 

Ekta Jain 5000 
 

0.02 
 

- 
  

5000 
 

0.02 
 

- 
  

No 
Change 

5 
 

M.K. Ostwal 
(Karta of M.K. 
Ostwal HUF) 

2500 
 

0.01 
 

-  
 

2500 
 

0.01 
 

- 
  

No 
Change 

6 
 

Pankaj Ostwal 
(Karta of 
Pankaj Ostwal 
HUF) 

5000 
 

0.02 
 

-  
 

5000 
 

0.02 
 

-  
 

No 
Change 

7 
 

Praveen 
Ostwal (Karta 
of Praveen 
Ostwal HUF) 

5000 
 

0.02 
 

- 
 

5000 
 

0.02 
 

- 
 

No 
Change 

8 
 

Mahendra 
Kumar Ostwal 

5000 
 

0.02 
 

 - 
 

5000 
 

0.02 
 

 - 
 

No 
Change 

9 
 
 

Seasons Agro 
Chem India 
Private Limited 

 
1260250 

 
5.06 

 
- 
     220000         0.88 

- 
 

 

 

 -4.18 

10 
 
 

Ostwal 
Phoschem 
(India) Limited 11246500 45.17 

- 
 15785402 63.39 

- 
 18.22 

 Total 15735250 63.19 0 16713902 67.11 0 14.04 

 
 
 
 
 



 
KRISHANA PHOSCHEM LIMITED 

 

 
 
 
Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change) 
 

Name of Promoter 
 

Shareholding at the 
beginning of the year 

Cumulative Shareholding during the 
year 

  
No. of 
shares 

% of total 
shares of 
the 
company 

No. of 
shares 

% of total shares of the 
company 

Ostwal Phoschem 
(India) Limited 

 
    

At the beginning of the 
year 
 11246500 45.17 11246500 45.17 

Purchase 4538902 18.22 15785402 63.39 

At the End of the year 
 15785402 63.39 15785402 63.39 
Seasons Agro Chem 
India Private Limited     

At the beginning of the 
year 
 

 
        1260250          5.06 1260250 5.06 

Sale (1040250)          4.17 220000 0.88 

At the End of the year 
 220000 0.88 220000 0.88 

 

 

 

 

Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and 
Holders of GDRs and ADRs): 

S. 
No
.  Name of shareholder 

Shareholding at the beginning 
of the year 

Cumulative 
Shareholding during 
the year 

  

 

No. of 
shares 

% of total 
shares of the 
company 

No. of 
shares 

% of total 
shares of 
the 
company 

1. 

SWASTIK CLOTHTEX 
PRIVATE LIMITED     

 At the beginning of the year 1444000 5.79 1444000 5.79 

 
Increase /Decrease in Share 
 Holding during the year 5944 0.02 1449944         5.82 

 At the End of the year  1449944 5.82 1449944 5.82 
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2. 

 
SHUBHLAXMI TEX FAB 
PRIVATE LIMITED 
     

  At the beginning of the year 977000 3.92 977000 3.92 

 
Increase /Decrease in Share 
Holding during the year 71192 0.28 1048192 4.20 

  At the End of the year  1048192 4.20 1048192 4.20 

3. 
 

VISUALIZE TRADECOM 
PRIVATE LIMITED     

  At the beginning of the year 505000 2.02 505000 2.02 

 
Increase /Decrease in Share 
Holding during the year 162044 0.65 667044 2.67 

  At the End of the year  667044 2.67 667044 2.67 

 
4. SUSWANI TEXTILE PVT LTD     

  At the beginning of the year 534949 2.14 534949 2.14 

 
Increase /Decrease in Share 
Holding during the year 17985 0.07 552934 2.22 

  At the End of the year  552934 2.22 552934 2.22 

 
5. SHAILENDRA KUMAR GARG     

  At the beginning of the year 388000 1.55 388000 1.55 

 
Increase /Decrease in Share 
Holding during the year - - - - 

  At the End of the year  388000 1.55 388000 1.55 

6. MAHENDRA GARG     

 At the beginning of the year 348000 1.39 348000 1.39 

 
Increase /Decrease in Share 
Holding during the year - - - - 

 At the End of the year  348000 1.39 348000 1.39 

7. KANTHED SHANTI LAL HUF     

 At the beginning of the year 136000 0.54 136000 0.54 
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Increase /Decrease in Share 
Holding during the year - - - - 

 At the End of the year  136000 0.54 136000 0.54 

8. NORATAN DEVI KANTHER     

 At the beginning of the year 136000 0.54 136000 0.54 

 
Increase /Decrease in Share 
Holding during the year - - - - 

 At the End of the year  136000 0.54 136000 0.54 

9. SHANTI LAL KANTHER    
  At the beginning of the year 136000 0.54 136000 0.54 

 
Increase /Decrease in Share 
Holding during the year - - - - 

 At the End of the year  136000 0.54 136000 0.54 

10. SONALI GARG     

 At the beginning of the year 128000 0.51 128000 0.51 

 
Increase /Decrease in Share 
Holding during the year - - - - 

 At the End of the year  128000 0.51 128000 0.51 

11. 
Shreenathji Crimpers Private 
Limited     

 At the beginning of the year - - - - 

 
Increase /Decrease in Share 
Holding during the year 116000 0.46 116000 0.46 

 At the End of the year  116000 0.46 116000 0.46 

12. SHREYANSH BAID     

 At the beginning of the year 160000 0.64 160000 0.64 

 
Increase /Decrease in Share 
Holding during the year (48000) 0.19 112000 0.44 

 At the End of the year  112000 0.44 112000 0.44 

 

 

 

 

 



 
KRISHANA PHOSCHEM LIMITED 

 

Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel: 

S. 
No.   Name of shareholder 

Shareholding at the 
beginning of the year 

Cumulative Shareholding 
during the year 

 
 

 
No. of shares 

% of total 
shares of the 
company 

No. of 
shares 

% of total 
shares of 
the 
company 

1. Sh. Praveen Ostwal 
    

  
At the beginning of the 
year 678500 2.72 678500 2.72 

  

Increase /Decrease in 
Shareholding during the 
year - - - - 

 At the End of the year 678500 2.72 678500 2.72 

2 Sh. Pankaj Ostwal     

 
At the beginning of the 
year 5000 0.02 5000 0.02 

 

Increase /Decrease in 
Shareholding during the 
year - - - - 

 At the End of the year 5000 0.02 5000 0.02 

3. Sh. Bheru Lal Ostwal     

 
At the beginning of the 
year 16000 0.06 16000 0.06 

 

Increase /Decrease in 
Shareholding during the 
year - - - - 

 At the End of the year 16000 0.06 16000 0.06 

4. 
Sh. Mahendra Kumar 
Ostwal     

 
At the beginning of the 
year 5000 0.02 5000 0.02 

 

Increase /Decrease in 
Shareholding during the 
year - - - - 

 At the End of the year 5000 0.02 5000 0.02 

5. Sh. Ashish Kothari      

 
At the beginning of the 
year 4000 0.01 4000 0.01 

 

Increase /Decrease in 
Shareholding during the 
year - - - - 

 At the End of the year 4000 0.01 4000 0.01 
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INDEBTEDNESS 
Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due 
for payment 

(Rs. In Lakhs) 

 Particular 
 

Secured 
Loans 

excluding 
deposits 

Unsecured 
Loans Deposits 

Total 
Indebtedness 

Indebtedness at the 
beginning of the financial 
year 

    i) Principal Amount        2710.32 470.90  3181.22 

ii) Interest due but not paid -    

iii) Interest accrued but not due 0 -   

Total (i+ii+iii) 2710.32 470.90  3181.22 

Change in Indebtedness 
during the financial year     

Addition 16891.50 382.90  17304.43 

Reduction 18404.84 853.80  19258.64 

Net Change -1513.34 -470.90  -1954.21 

Indebtedness at the end of 
the financial year     

i ) Principal Amount 1196.98                   1196.98 

ii) Interest due but not paid -    

iii) Interest accrued but not due 0    

Total (i+ii+iii) 1196.98                   1196.98 

 
 
REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 
 
A.Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager (Rs.in lakhs) 

S.
no. Particulars of Remuneration Name of MD/WTD/ Manager 

Total 
Amount 

    
Sh. Praveen 
Ostwal 

Sh. Sunil 
Kothari   

1 Gross salary 
   

  
(a) Salary as per provisions contained in 
section 17(1) of the Income-tax Act, 1961 48.00 9.66 57.66 

  
(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-
tax Act, 1961 - - - 

  
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 
17(3) Income- tax Act, 1961 - - - 

2 Stock Option - - - 
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3 Sweat Equity - - - 

     

4 Commission  - - - 

  -      as % of profit  - - - 

  -      others, specify - - - 

 
Others, please specify  - - - 

  Total (A)  48.00       9.66 57.66 

  Ceiling as per the Act  
    

 
   B. Remuneration to other directors - N.A. 
 
 
C. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel other than MD/MANAGER/WTD – 
                                                                                                                         (Rs. in Lakhs) 

 

  
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

S. 
no
. Particulars of Remuneration Key Managerial Personnel 

 

    Company Secretary CFO 
Total 

Amount 

    Miss Priyanka Bansal    

1 Gross salary 1.91  0 1.91 

  

(a) Salary as per provisions 
contained in section 17(1) of the 
Income-tax Act, 1961 1.91  - 1.91 

  
(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) 
Income-tax Act, 1961 -  - - 

  

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under 
section 17(3) Income- tax Act, 
1961 -  - - 

2 Stock Option -  - - 

3 Sweat Equity -  - - 

4 Commission  -  - - 

  -      as % of profit  -  - - 

  -      others, specify -  - - 

5 Others, please specify  -  - - 

 Total 1.91  - 1.91 



 
KRISHANA PHOSCHEM LIMITED 

 

 
 
PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES 
There were no penalties / punishment / compounding of offences for breach of any section of 
Companies Act against the Company or its Directors or other officers in default, if any, during 
the year. 
 
 

   
 

 
                                          For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors 

    
Sd/- 
 

 
   Sd/- 

Place Bhilwara  (Praveen Ostwal) (Sunil Kothari) 
Date 13/07/2020  Managing Director Whole Time 

Director 
                                                                                               (DIN: 00412207)               (DIN: 02056569) 
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ANNEXURE-II 

Form No. MR-3 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 2019-20 

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 

No.9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) 

Rules, 2014] 

 

To, 

The Members, 

Krishana Phoschem Limited 

 

I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the 

adherence to good corporate practices by Krishana Phoschem Limited. Secretarial Audit was 

conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate 

conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon. 

Based on our verification of the Krishana Phoschem Limited books, papers, minute books, forms 

and returns filed and other records maintained by the company and also the information provided 

by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of 

secretarial audit, We hereby report that in my/our opinion, the company has, during the audit 

period covering the financial year ended 31st March, 2020 complied with the statutory provisions 

listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-

mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter: 

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records 

maintained by Krishana Phoschem Limited (“the Company”) for the financial year ended on 31st 

March, 2020 according to the provisions of: 

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder; 

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder; 

mailto:SOURAbh.bapna12@gmail.com
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(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder; 

(iv)Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent of 

Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings; 

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India 

Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):- 

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) 

Regulations, 2011; 

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 1992; 

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 

2009; 

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock 

Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999; (Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period); 

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008; (Not 

Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period); 

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) 

Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client; 

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009; and (Not 

Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period); 

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998; 

 

I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following: 

(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India. 
(ii)The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with Stock Exchange 

 

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, 

Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above.  
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I further report that 

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive 

Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of 

the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in 

compliance with the provisions of the Act. 

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes 

on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining 

further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful 

participation at the meeting. 

Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting member’s views are captured and recorded 

as part of the minutes. 

I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the 

size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, 

regulations and guidelines. 

 

For Sourabh Bapna & Associates  

Company Secretaries 

 

      Sd/- 

(Sourabh Bapna) 

Proprietor 

C.P. No. 19968 

M. No. 51505 

 

Date: 13.07.2020 

Place:  Bhilwara 
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ANNEXURE- III 
 

Particulars of employee 
 

Details Pertaining to Remuneration as Required Under Section 197(12) of the Companies 
Act, 2013 Read With Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 

Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 
 

(i) The ratio of the remuneration of each 
director to the median remuneration of the 
employees of the company for the financial 
year. 

1. Mr. Praveen Ostwal –20.12 
2. Mr. Sunil Kothari – 4.01 

 

(ii) The percentage increase in 
remuneration of each director, Chief 
Financial Officer, Chief Executive Officer, 
Company Secretary or Manager, if any, in 
the financial year. 

1. Praveen Ostwal (Managing Director) – 0.00 
 

2. Sunil Kothari (Whole Time Director &- 6.01% 
Chief Financial Officer) 

(iii)The percentage increase in the median 
remuneration of employees in the financial 
year 

NA 

(iv) The number of permanent employees 
on the rolls of company. 

110 Employees 

(v) Average percentage increase already 
made in the salaries of employees other than 
the managerial personnel in the last financial 
year and its comparison with the percentage 
increase in the managerial remuneration and 
justification thereof and point out if there are 
any exceptional circumstances for increase in 
the managerial remuneration. 

As against increase of 12.24% in respect of 
employees other than managerial, the increase of 
managerial personnel has been 0.95 % 

(vi) Affirmation that the remuneration is as 
per the remuneration policy of the 
company. 

The company affirmed that the remuneration is as 
per the Nomination and Remuneration Policy for 
the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Other 
Employees of the Company, formulated pursuant 
to the provisions of section 178 of the Companies 
Act, 2013. 

 
Details of the employees of the Company – Pursuant to Section 197 (Rule 5) of the Companies 
Act, 2013. 
(i) Employed throughout the financial year, was in receipt of remuneration for that year which, in 

the aggregate, was not less than one crore and two lakh rupees : NA  
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(ii) Employed for a part of the financial year, was in receipt of remuneration for any part of that 
year, at a rate which, in the aggregate, was not less than eight lakh and fifty thousand rupees 
per month: NA  
 

(iii) Employed throughout the financial year or part thereof receiving remuneration in excess of the 
amount drawn by Managing Director: NA 
 

  
 

 
 

 
 

For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors 
     
    

        Sd/- 
 
        Sd/- 

Place Bhilwara  (Praveen Ostwal) (Sunil Kothari) 
Date 13/07/2020  

Managing Director 
Whole Time 
Director 

                                                                                          (DIN: 00412207)               (DIN: 02056569) 
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ANNEXURE IV 

Details of Conservation Of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange Earning and 
Outgo 

Information pursuant to section 134 (c) (m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies 
(Companies (Accounts) rule 2014) Rule, 8 and forming part of the Directors Report for the year 
ended 31st March 2020. 
 
CONSERVATION OF ENERGY 
(a)The Company takes adequate steps for the conservation of energy at every stage of production 
and remains conscious about conserving energy resources. 
 
(b)The Company has made adequate investment on various measures for conservation of energy 
which has resulted in optimizing energy consumption and saving in cost.  
 
(c)The information pertaining to total energy consumption and energy generation per unit of 
production: 
 

A. Power & Fuel Consumption: 

  2019-20 2018-19 

1 Electricity:    

(A) Purchase of Units: 4907141 4166722 

 Amount in Rs.  40051533 32445776 

 Rate / unit Rs. 8.16 7.79 

(B) Own Generation Through Diesel: NIL NIL 

 Units generated  14990 16447 

 Units per liter of oil  2.09 2.19 

 Cost/unit (Rs.)  34.22 31.05 

(C) Own Generation Through Steam   

 Units generated  6814388 6053718 

 Units per liter of oil  0 0 

 Cost/unit (Rs.)  0 0 

B. Consumption per unit of production: 

 Electricity (Unit/MT)   

1. Beneficiated Rock Phosphate 34.96 *35.55 

2. Single Super Phosphate 17.25 *15.41 

 Granular Single Super Phosphate 15.63 *14.04 

 H-Acid & other Dyes & Intermediate 2006.19 2262.00 

 Sulphuric Acid & other Chemicals  75.89 *81.65 

 
Note- * Changed to have parity of including own generated units 
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TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION 
The Company has strengthened infrastructure for R & D and carried out improvement in quality 
systems. This has resulted into consistency in achieving standard quality parameters as per 
Government of India. The Company will continue to thrust on R & D activities of the Company.  
 
FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO 
There is no foreign currency exposure earning& outgoing during the year 2019-20. 
  

 

 
 
 
 

For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors 
     
    

Sd/- 
 
Sd/- 

Place Bhilwara  (Praveen Ostwal) (Sunil Kothari) 
Date 13/07/2020  

Managing Director 
Whole Time 
Director 

                                                                                          (DIN: 00412207)               (DIN: 02056569) 
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ANNEXURE-V 

 

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 186: 

(Pursuant to clause (g) of sub-section (3) of section 134 & section 186(4) of the Companies 

Act, 2013)  

 
                                                                                  (In lacs) 

 
  

 

 
 
 
 

For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors 
     
    

Sd/- 
 
Sd/- 

Place Bhilwara  (Praveen Ostwal) (Sunil Kothari) 
Date 13/07/2020  

Managing Director 
Whole Time 
Director 

                                                                                          (DIN: 00412207)               (DIN: 02056569) 
     

 

 
    
   
   
 

 

 Particulars as 
As at 31st 

March,2020 

As at 31st March,2016 
As at 31st March, 

2019 

(A) Loan Given 803.37 - 

   

   

(B) Investment made - - 

   

   

(C) Guarantee given* -                - 
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ANNEXURE VI 
 

Form No. AOC-2 
 

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 8(2) 
of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014) 

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the 
company with related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s length transactions under Fourth proviso 
thereto 
 

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis –N.A. 
 

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis:- 
 
 

Name(s) of the related party Nature of 
relationship 

Duration 
of contract 

Salient 
terms  

Amount 
(In Lac.) 

Investment in Equity Instrument     

Purchase of Material  FY 19-20   
Madhya Bharat Agro Products Ltd. Interested Director - See note-1 260.31 

Ostwal Phoschem (India) Limited Holding Company  See note-1 1311.44 
     

Rent  payment of Immovable 
Property 

 FY 19-20   

Ostwal Phoschem (India) Limited Holding Company  See note-1 0.08 

Sale of Material  FY 19-20   
Ostwal Phoschem (India) Limited Holding Company  See note-1 950.44 

Madhya Bharat Agro Products Ltd. Interested Director  See note-1 1205.77 
     
Loan Given  FY 19-20   
Ostwal Phoschem (India) Limited Holding Company  See note-1 800 

     

Loan Paid  FY 19-20   

Ostwal Phoschem (India) Limited Holding Company  See note-1 496.30 

     

Interest Paid on Loan Taken  FY 19-20   

Ostwal Phoschem (India) Limited Holding Company  See note-1 33.37 

Interest Received  FY 19-20   
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Ostwal Phoschem (India) Limited Holding Company  See note-1 3.74 

 
Note: 

1. Terms of the contract conform to the prevailing market rates and all the care has been taken 
to ensure reasonability of prices compare to the prevailing rates in the market, better 
quality products and timely supply. 
 
 

2. Appropriate approvals have been taken for related party transactions.  

 
3. Advance paid have been adjusted against billing, wherever applicable. 

 
  For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors 

     
    

          Sd/- 
 

Sd/- 

   (Praveen Ostwal) (Sunil Kothari) 
  Place  Bhilwara (Raj)  Managing Director Whole Time Director 

& 
     Chief Financial Officer 

  Date 13.07.2020         DIN 00412207 DIN 02056569 
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ANNEXURE VII 

                  CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT- 2019-20 
 

1. Corporate Governance Philosophy on Code of Corporate Governance 
 

The Company believes that sound ethical practices, transparency in operations and timely disclosures 
goa long way in enhancing long-term shareholders’ value while safeguarding the interest of all the 
stakeholders. It is this conviction that has lead the Company to make strong corporate governance 
values intrinsic to all its operations. The Company is lead by a distinguished Board, which includes 
independent directors. The Board provides strong oversight and strategic counsel. The Company has 
established systems and procedures to ensure that the Board of the Company is well-informed and 
well-equipped to fulfill its oversight responsibilities and to provide management the strategic direction 
it needs. In terms of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the details of compliances, are as follows:- 
 

2. Board of Directors 
Composition of the Board 

 
As on March 31, 2020, the Company’s Board comprised of 8(Eight) Directors viz., 4(Four) Non-Executive 

Independent Directors; 1 (One) Promoter and Managing Director, 1 (One) Whole time Director, and a 2 
(Two) Promoter and Non-Executive Director. The Chairman of the Board is also Promoter Non – 
Executive Director. 

 
Details of Board of Director’s category, attendance at the Board Meetings and last Annual 
General Meeting (AGM), number of other Directorships and Committee positions as on 31st 
March, 2020 are given below: 
 

 

Sr

. 

N

o. 

Name of 

the 

Director 

Category/ 

Status of 
Directorship 

No. of 

Board 

Meetings 

during 

year 

 

No. of 

Board 

Meetings 

attended 

during 

year 

 

Whet

her 

Atten

ded 

AGM 

No. of 

Directorships 

In Other 

Public 

Limited 

Companies 

No. of Committee 

positions held in 

Public 

Limited 

Companies 

No. of 

Equity 

Shares 

held in 

the 

Comp

any Chairman Member 

1 Praveen 

Ostwal 

Managing 

Director 

10 10 Yes 1. Ostwal 
Phoschem 
(India) 
Limited(Non-
Executive 
Director) 
2. Madhya 
Bharat Agro 
Products 
Limited(Non-
Executive 
Director) 

- 2 678500 
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2 Sunil 

Kothari 

 

Whole 

Time 

Director 

and Chief 

Financial 

Officer 

10 10 Yes - - 1 - 

3 Ashish 

Kothari 

Non- 

Executive 

Independe

nt 

Director 

10 10 Yes - 1 4 4000 

4 Pradeep 

Agarwal 
Non-

Executive 

Independe

nt 

Director 

10 10 Yes - 4 1 - 

5 Priyanka 

Surana 
Non- 

Executive 

Women 

Independe

nt 

Director 

10 10 No - - 2 - 

6 Mahendra  

Kumar 

Ostwal 

Chairman 

cum 

Non- 

Executive 

Director 

10 

 
10 Yes 1. Ostwal 

Phoschem 
(India) 
Limited 
(Managing 
Director) 
2. Madhya 
Bharat Agro 
Products 
Limited (Non-
Executive 
Director ) 

  5000 

7 Pankaj 

Ostwal 

Non- 

Executive 

Director 

10 10 Yes 1. Ostwal 
Phoschem 
(India) 
Limited(Non-
Executive 
Director) 
2. Madhya 
Bharat Agro 
Products 
Limited 
(Managing  
Director) 

 3 5000 

8. Bheru 

Lal 

Ostwal 

Non- 

Executive 

Director 

and 
Independent 

Director 

10 10 No 1. Ostwal 
Phoschem 
(India) 
Limited (Non-
Executive 
Independent 
Director) 
2. Madhya 

- - 16000 
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Bharat Agro 
Products 
Limited (Non-
Executive 
Independent 
Director) 

 

 

Number of Board Meetings 

During the financial year from 1st April, 2019 to 31st March 2020, the Board of Directors met 
10(Ten)  times on 08-04-2019, 10-05-2019, 27-06-2019, 23-08-2019, 16-09-2019, 13-11-2019, 02-12-
2019, 13-01-2020, 03-02-2020, and 03-03-2020. The maximum time gap between any two 
consecutive board meetings was less than 120 days. 
 
Disclosure of relationships between directors inter-se 
Sh. Praveen Ostwal, Managing Director on the Board of Directors is the Brother of Sh. Pankaj 
Ostwal, Non-Executive Director. Sh. Praveen Ostwal, Managing Director and Sh. Pankaj 
Ostwal, Non-Executive Director are the Son of Sh. Mahendra Kumar Ostwal, Chairman cum 
Non-Executive Director in the Company. 
 
Number of shares and convertible instruments held by non- executive directors 
Sh. Pankaj Ostwal, who holds 5000 Equity Shares, Sh. Mahendra Kumar Ostwal who holds 5000 
Equity Shares, Sh. Bheru Lal Ostwal who holds 16000 Equity Shares and Sh. Ashish Kothari who 
holds 4000 Equity Shares in the Company. 
 
Web link where details of familiarization programmes imparted to Independent Directors is 
disclosed: 
All Independent Directors are familiarized with the Company and their roles, rights, 
responsibilities, nature of the industry in which the Company operates, business model of the 
Company, etc. from time to time. 
 
The details regarding Independent Directors’ Familiarization Programmes are given on the 
website of the Company and can be accessed at www.krishnaphoschem.com. 
 
Separate Meeting of the Independent Directors 
During the reporting financial year, a separate Meeting of the Independent Directors of the 
Company, was held on 18th March, 2020, at the Registered Office of the Company at 5-O-20, 
Basement, R.C. Vyas Colony, Bhilwara 311001, whereat the following items as enumerated 
under Schedule IV to the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 25 of the SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 were discussed: 
a) Review of performance of Non-Independent Directors and the Board as a whole. 
b) Review of performance of the Chairperson of the Company. 
c) Assessment of the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information between the 
Company management and the Board that is necessary for the Board to effectively and 
reasonably perform their duties. 
 
 

http://www.krishnaphoschem.com/
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List of skills/expertise/competencies required to function the business effectively: 
The following list of core skills/ expertise/ competencies are identified by the Board of 
Directors as required in the context of Business(es) and sector(s) for it to function effectively 
and those actually available with the Board of Directors. 
 
Qualification & Knowledge: Directors should be financially literate and have a sound 
understanding of business strategy, corporate governance and board operations. 
 
Integrity and Judgment: Directors should have the highest level of integrity, ethical character 
and the ability to exercise sound business judgment on a broad range of issues consistent with 
the Company’s values. 
 
Experience and Accomplishments: Directors should have significant experience and proven 
Superior performance in professional endeavours whether this experience is in business, 
government, and academicor with non-profit organizations. 
 
Independence: Directors who are not current or former management should meet the spirit as 
well as the letter of the applicable independence standards. In addition, all Directors should be 
independent in their thought and judgment so that they represent the long-term interests of all 
shareholders of the Company. 
 
Diversity: Directors should be capable of representing the multi-cultural nature of our global 
corporation with consideration being given to a diverse board in terms of gender and ethnic 
membership. In addition, the Committee shall take into account diversity in professional 
experience, skills and background. 
 
Board Interaction: Directors should value board and team performance over individual 
performance, demonstrate respect for others and facilitate superior board performance. 
Directors should be willing and able to devote the time required to become familiar with 
Company’s business and to be actively involved in the Board and its decision-making. 
 
Skills: Directors should have expertise in one or more of the areas such as accounting and 
finance, technology, management, international business, compensation, legal, HR, corporate 
governance, strategy, industry knowledge and general business matters. 
 
Confirmation pertaining to independent directors of the company: 
In the opinion of the Board of Directors of the Company, Mr. Ashish Kothari, Mr. Pradeep 
Agarwal, Priyanka Surana and Mr. Bheru Lal Ostwal, Non-Executive Independent Directors 
are Independent from the management and complies with the criteria of Independent Director 
as placed in Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and the Companies Act, 2013. 
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3. Audit Committee 
 

(a)Brief description of terms of reference: 
The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are in line with the provisions of Section 177 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015. The role of the Audit Committee is to provide oversight over the accounting systems, financial 
reporting and internal controls of the Company. 
The powers and role of the Audit Committee are as set out in the Listing Agreement and Section 177 of 
the Companies Act, 2013. 

 
(b) Composition, Name of Members and Chairperson: 
The Audit Committee comprises 3 (Three) Directors as members. All members are financially literate 
and possess sound knowledge of accounts, finance and audit matters. The Company Secretary of the 
Company acts as Secretary to the Audit Committee. The Internal Auditors of the Company attend the 
Meetings of the Audit Committee on invitation of the Chairman of the Committee. The Composition of 
Audit Committee of the Company, is given below: 

 

Sr. 
No. 

Name Name Designation Position in Committee 

1. 
 

Shri Ashish Kothari Non-Executive-Independent 
Director 

Chairman 
 

2. Shri Pradeep Agarwal Non-Executive-Independent 
Director 

Member 

3. Shri Praveen Ostwal Managing Director Member 

 
(c) Meetings and attendance during the year: 
Four Audit Committee Meetings were held during the year ended March 31, 2020. The 
maximum time gap between any of the two meetings was not more than one hundred and 
twenty days. 
 
The dates on which the Audit Committee meetings held are April 10, 2019, July 31, 2019, 
October 10, 2019 and February 03, 2020. 
 
Details of the Members participation at the Meetings of the Committee are as under: 
 

Name of Director Designation Number of Meetings 

Held Attended 

Shri Ashish Kothari Chairman 4 4 

Shri Pradeep Agarwal Member 4 4 

Shri Praveen Ostwal Member 4 4 
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4. Nomination and Remuneration Committee 
(a)Brief description of terms of reference: 
 
1.Identify persons who are qualified to become directors and may be appointed in senior 
management in accordance with the criteria laid down, recommend to the Board their 
appointment and removal and shall carry out evaluation of every director’s performance; 
 
2.Formulate the criteria for determining the qualifications, positive attributes and 
independence of a director and recommend to the Board a policy relating to the remuneration 
for directors, KMPs and other employees; 
 
3. Formulation of criteria for evaluation of performance of independent directors and the board 
of directors; 
 

4. Devising a policy on diversity of board of directors; 
 

5. Whether to extend or continue the term of appointment of the independent director, on the 
basis of the repo performance evaluation of independent directors; 
 

6. Determine our Company’s policy on specific remuneration package for the Whole Time 
Director / Executive Director including pension rights. 
 

7. Decide the salary, allowances, perquisites, bonuses, notice period, severance fees and 
increment of Executive Directors; 
 

8. Define and implement the Performance Linked Incentive Scheme (including ESOP of the 
Company) and evaluate the performance and determine the amount of incentive of the 
Executive Directors for that purpose. 
 

9. Decide the amount of Commission payable to the Whole time Directors; 
 

10. Review and suggest revision of the total remuneration package of the Executive Directors 
keeping in view the performance of the Company, standards prevailing in the industry, 
statutory guidelines etc.  
 

11. To formulate and administer the Employee Stock Option Scheme. 
 
(b) Composition, Name of Members and Chairperson: 
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee was constituted by the Board with three 
Independent Directors. The Chairman of this Committee is Independent Director. 
The Company Secretary acts as the Secretary of the Committee. 
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The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company as under:- 
 

Sr. 
No. 

Name Designation Position in Committee 

1. Mr. Pradeep Agarwal Non-Executive-Independent 
Director 

Chairman 

2. Mr. Ashish Kothari Non-Executive-Independent 
Director 

Member 

3. Mrs. Priyanka Surana Non-Executive-Independent 
Director 

Member 

 
(c) Meetings and attendance during the year: 
There is no Committee Meetings were held during the year ended March 31, 2020. 
 

(d) Performance evaluation criteria for Independent Directors: 
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board laid out the evaluation criteria for 
performance evaluation of the Board, its Committees and all the individual directors, in 
adherence of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. The 
performance evaluation for the financial year was carried out in accordance with the criteria 
laid out by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee. The evaluation of all directors 
(including Independent Directors) was done by the entire Board of Directors (excluding the 
Director being evaluated). 
 

5. Remuneration of director 
 
(a) All pecuniary relationship or transactions of the non-executive director’s visà- vis 
Company: 
None . 
 
(b) Criteria of making payments to Non-Executive Directors: 
The Company has adopted a Nomination and Remuneration Policy for Directors, Key 
Managerial Personnel and other Employees; regulated by the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee of the Board. The Policy is also available on the website of the Company 
www.krishnaphoschem.com in the ‘Investor Handbook’ section in ‘Investor Relation’. 

 
 

6. Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee 
 
Composition, Name of Members and Chairperson: 
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee was constituted by the Board with two 
Independent Directors and one executive Director. The Chairman of this Committee is 
Independent Director. 
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During the Year the 4 stakeholder Relationship committee Meetings were held on 06thMay 
2019, 31st August 2019, 31st October 2019, and 03rd February 2020. 
 
The Company Secretary acts as the Secretary of the Committee. 
 
The constituted Stakeholders Relationship Committee comprises the following: 
 

Sr. No. Name Designation Position in Committee 
 

1. M Pradeep Agarwal Non-Executive-Independent 
Director 

Chairman 

2. M Ashish Kothari Non-Executive-Independent 
Director 

Member 

3. M Praveen Ostwal Managing Director Member 

 
(a) Name of Non-Executive Director heading the Committee: 
Mr. Pradeep Agarwal, Non-Executive Independent Director was appointed as the Chairman 
of the Stakeholders Relationship / Grievance Redressal Committee. 
 
(b)Name and designation of Compliance officer: Ms. Priyanka Bansal, Company Secretary 
 
(c) A Summary of complaints received and resolved by the Company during the period 
under review is given below: 

 

No. of Investor Complaints 
received 

No. of Investor Complaints 
disposed 

No. of Investor Complaints 
those remaining unresolved 

0 0 0 

 
7. Corporate Social Responsibility Committee 
In compliance of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Corporate Social 
Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, the Board has constituted a Corporate Social Responsibility 
Committee. The composition of the Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee as at 
March 31, 2020 is as under: 
 

 

Name of the Director Designation Nature of Directorship 

Shri Pradeep Agarwal Chairman  Non-Executive 
Independent Director 

Shri Sunil Kothari Member  Whole Time Director 

Shri Ashish Kothari Member  Non-Executive 
Independent Director 
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8. General Body Meetings 
Particulars of last three Annual General Meetings: 
 

AGM Year Ended Venue Date 
 

Time 

15th March 31, 2019 Hotel Kanchi 
Resorts, Pur Road, 
Bhilwara, 311001 
(Rajasthan). 

26th  September, 
2019 

03:30 P.M. 

14th March 31, 2018 Hotel Kanchi 
Resorts, Pur Road, 
Bhilwara, 311001 
(Rajasthan). 

27th  September, 
2018 

03:30 P.M. 

13th March 31, 2017 Hotel Kanchi 
Resorts, Pur Road, 
Bhilwara, 311001 
(Rajasthan). 

23rd   September, 
2017 

03:00 P.M. 

 
 
Special Resolutions passed in previous three Annual General Meetings 
Following Special resolutions were passed by the Company during the last three Annual 
General Meetings (AGM) of the Company. 
Date Particulars 

26th September, 2019 1. To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without 
modification, to appoint Sh. Mahendra Kumar Ostwal as a Non-
Executive Director  
2. To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without 
modification, to appoint Sh. Bheru Lal Ostwal as a Non-Executive 
Independent Director. 
3. To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, with or without 
modification(s), to appoint Mr. Pradeep Agarwal as an 
Independent Director of the Company for the five (5) consecutive 
years. 
4. To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, with or without 
modification(s), to Increase in Borrowing Powers of the 
Company. 
5. To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, with or without 
modification(s), to Creation of Charge on Movable and 
Immovable properties of the Company, both present and future. 
 

27th September, 2018 1. To Approval of Loans to Directors/Interested Parties 
 

23rd September, 2017 No special Resolution passed 
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Resolution proposed to be passed through Postal Ballot 
None of Business proposed to be transacted in the ensuring Annual General Meeting 
required the passing of a resolution by way of postal ballot. 
 

9. Means of Communication 
 

1) The unaudited quarterly results are announced within forty five days from the close of the 
Quarter and the Audited results are announced within sixty days from the close of the financial 
year. The financial results are immediately sent to the Stock Exchanges and also uploaded on the 
website of the Company -www.krishnaphoschem.com. 

2) The Company’s corporate website, www.krishnaphoschem.com provides comprehensive 
information to the Shareholders. 
3) The Company has not made presentation to the institutional investors or analysts.  
 

10.General Shareholders Information 
 

Sr. 

No. 

Salient Items of Interest Particulars 

1. Annual General Meeting 

Date and Day 

Time 

Venue / Mode 

 

On Friday, September 18, 2020. 

11.00 A.M 

Video conference and other audio- visual means  

2. Financial Year April 1st 2019 to March 31st, 2020 

3. Dividend Payment Date Dividend will be paid within 30 days of the approval of the same 

in the Annual General Meeting. 

4. Listing on Stock Exchanges The Company’s equity shares are listed on NSE Platform. The 

listing fee for the same has been paid. 

5 Symbol KRISHANA 

ISIN : INE506W01012 

6. 

 
Market Price Data: High, Low during each month in Last Financial Year 

 Month High Low 

 Apr-19 51.9 50 

 May-19 50 44.75 

 June- 19 59.2 44.1 

 July-19 59.9 50 

 Aug-19 59.95 50 

 Sep-19 68.9 49 

 Oct-19 62.5 50 

 Nov- 19 63.95 47.65 

 Dec-19 65 50 

 Jan-20 62.1 52.8 

 Feb-20 55 50.2 

 Mar-20 53 46.55 
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7. Register and Transfer Agents LINK INTIME INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED 

C- 101, 247 Park, L.B.S. Marg, 

Vikhroli (West), Mumbai – 400083, Maharashtra, India. 

Tel: 91-22 – 49186000 

Fax: 91-22 – 49186060 

Website: www.linkintime.co.in 

Email: rnt.helpdesk@linkintime.co.in 

8. Share Transfer System As all the shares are held in dematerialized mode, the transfer 

takes place instantaneously between the transferor, transferee, and 

the Depository Participant through electronic debit/credit of the 

accounts involved. 

9. Distribution of Shareholding (as on 31.03.2020) 

 Shareholding No. of Shareholder Percentage of 

Shareholder 

Share Amount Percentage of 

Shareholding 

 1 to 5000 78 22.22 45390 0.0182 

 5001 to 10000 5 1.43 42610 0.0171 

 10001 to 20000 4 1.14 71660 0.0288 

 20001 to 30000 13 3.70 362800 0.1457 

 30001 to 40000 126 35.90 5007120 2.0109 

 40001 to 50000 8 2.28 374120 0.1502 

 50001 to 100000 33 9.40 2662830 1.0694 

 100001 to 99999999999 84 23.93 240433470 96.5596 

 Total 351 100 249000000 100 

10. Dematerialization of shares and 

Liquidity 

All the Equity shares i.e. 100 % of the total issued, subscribed and 

paid-up equity share capital of the Company was held in 

dematerialized form. 

11. Outstanding GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or any 

Convertible instruments, conversion date and 

likely impact on equity 

Not Applicable 

12. Plant Locations Unit I  : Plot No. 115, 116, 117 

and 118-A, 118-B, 119 

120 , and 126 – 133, Meghnagar 

Jhabua , Madhya 

Pradesh 

Unit II : Plot No. 142 and 143, 

Meghnagar Jhabua, 

Madhya Pradesh 

Unit III: Plot No. 126-A and 

134, Meghnagar 

Jhabua, Madhya 

Pradesh 

13. Address for correspondence 5-O-20, Basement R C 

Vyas Colony, 

Bhilwara – 311001, 

Rajasthan, India. 

Ph. No. 91-1482-237104/ 239091/ 230060 

Email:secretarial@krishnaphoschem.com; 

Website: www.krishnaphoschem.com 

14. List of all credit ratings obtained by the 
entity along with any revisions thereto 
during the relevant financial year, for all debt 
instruments of such entity or any fixed 
deposit programme or any scheme or 
proposal of the listed entity involving 
mobilization of funds, whether in India or 

Not Applicable 

mailto:rnt.helpdesk@linkintime.co.in
http://www.krishnaphoschem.com/
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abroad 

 
 

11.Other Disclosures 
 

(a) Related Party Transactions: 
During the year, none of the transactions with the related parties were in conflict with the 
interest of the Company at large. 
All the related party transactions have been disclosed in the notes to the accounts of the Balance 
Sheet presented in the Annual Report. 
 
(b) Details of non-compliance: 
There were no strictures or penalties imposed by either SEBI or Stock Exchanges or any 
Statutory Authority for non-compliance of any matter related to the capital markets during the 
last three years. 

 
(c) Vigil Mechanism / Whistle Blower Policy: 
The Company has formulated Whistle Blower Policy for vigil mechanism of Directors and 
employees to report to the management about the unethical behavior, fraud or violation of 
Company’s Code of Conduct. None of the person of the Company has been denied access to the 
Audit Committee. The Whistle Blower Policy is displayed on the Company’s website viz. 
http://www.krishnaphoschem.com. 
 

(d) Details of compliance with mandatory requirements and adoption of the non-mandatory 
requirements: 
The Company has fully complied with the mandatory requirements of SEBI (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

 
(e) Web link where policy for determining ‘material’ subsidiaries is disclosed: The policy for 
determining ‘material’ subsidiaries is available on the website of the Company at 
www.krishnaphoschem.com 

 
(f) Web link where policy on dealing with related party transactions is disclosed: 
The policy on dealing with related party transactions is available on the website of the Company 
at www.krishnaphoschem.com 

 
(g) Commodity price risk or foreign exchange risk and hedging activities: 
The Company has a proper Risk Management Practices and any risk arising from exposure to 
foreign currency for exports and imports is being hedged on a continuous basis. As of now, the 
Company does not hedge any commodity price risk. 

 
(h) Details of utilization of funds raised through preferential allotment or qualified 
institutional placement as specified under regulation 32(7A): 

Not Applicable 
 

http://www.krishnaphoschem.com/
http://www.krishnaphoschem.com/
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(i)Certificate from the Practicing Company Secretary for the Non – Disqualification of Directors 
under SEBI (LODR), 2015- Regulation 34(3): 
The Certificate from Practicing Company secretary, M/s. Sourabh Bapna& Associates, regarding 
that none of the directors on the Board of the Company have been debarred or disqualified from 
being appointed or continuing as directors of companies by the Board/ Ministry of Corporate 
Affairs or any such statutory authority as on March 31, 2020. 
 
(j)Where the Board has not accepted any recommendation of any committee of the Board which 
is mandatorily required in the relevant financial year the same to be disclosed along with there 
as on thereof: Not Applicable. 
 
(k)Total fees of all service paid by the listed company and its Subsidiary, on a consolidated 
basis, to the statutory auditor and all entities in the network firm/network entity of which the 
statutory auditor is a part: Rs. 1, 10,000 per annum 

 
(l)Disclosure under the Sexual Harassment of Women at the Workplace (Prevention, 
Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013: 

 
The company has in place an Anti-Sexual Harassment Policy in line with the requirement of the 
Sexual Harassment of Women at the Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 
2013. Internal Complaints Committee (ICC) has been set up to redress complaints received 
regarding sexual harassment. All employees (permanent, contractual, temporary, trainee) are 
covered under this policy. 
 
The following is a summary of sexual harassment complaints received and disposed off during 
the year 2019-20. 
No. of complaints received: Nil 
No. of complaints disposed off: Nil 
 
(m)Instanceofnon-Complianceofanyrequirementofcorporategovernancereport: There has 
been no instance of non-compliance of any requirement of corporate governance report. 
 
(n)Disclosure of compliance of regulation 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of sub regulation (2) 
of regulation 46: The Company has complied with all the mandatory requirements specified in 
Regulations 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of sub–regulation (2) of Regulation 46 of the SEBI 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 
 
(o)Disclosure of Accounting Treatment: 
In the preparation of the financial statements, the Company has followed the Accounting 
Standards referred to in Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013. The significant accounting 
policies which are consistently applied are set out in the Notes to the Financial Statements. 

 
(p)CEO and CFO Certification 
The Chairman and Managing Director and Chief Financial Officer of the Company give annual 
Compliance Certificate in accordance with Regulation 17(8) read with Part B of Schedule II of 
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 with the Stock 
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Exchange(s). The annual Compliance Certificate given by Chairman and Managing Director and 
Chief Financial Officer is attached with this Report an integral part of the Annual Report. 

 
(q)Code of conduct for Board Members and Senior Management Personnel 
The Board had approved a code of conduct for Board Members and Senior Management Personnel 
of the company which also incorporates the duties of Independent directors as laid down in 
Companies act, 2013. The Code has been displayed on the company’s website 
www.krishnaphoschem.com. The Board Members and Senior Management Personnel have 
affirmed compliance with the aforesaid code. 
 
(r)Compliance certificate from either the auditors or practicing company secretaries regarding 
compliance of conditions of corporate governance: 
The Certificate from Practicing Company secretaries, M/s. Sourabh Bapna & Associates, regarding 
compliance of conditions of corporate governance is attached with this Report an integral part of 
the Annual Report. 
 
 

  
 

For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors 
     
   Sd/- 

 
Sd/- 

Place Bhilwara  (Praveen Ostwal) (Sunil Kothari) 
Date 13/07/2020  

Managing Director 
Whole Time 
Director 

                                                                                          (DIN: 00412207)               (DIN: 02056569) 
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CERTIFICATION FROM THE MANAGING DIRECTOR AND THE CFO 

 
In terms of Regulation 34(3) of the SEBI (LODR) Regulation, 2015, we hereby certify as under: 
 
a) We have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statement for the year ended 

March 31, 2020 and that to the best of our knowledge and belief: 
 

i. These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or 
contain statements that might be misleading; 
 
ii. These statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are 
incompliance with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations. 
 
b) There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the 
Company during the year which are fraudulent, illegal or violates the Code of Conduct of the 
Company. 
 
c) We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial 
reporting and that we have evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems of the 
Company pertaining to financial reporting. We have disclosed to the auditors and the Audit 
Committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of such internal controls, if any, of which we 
are aware and the steps we have taken or propose to take to rectify these deficiencies. 
 
d) We do further certify that there has been: 
i. No Significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the year; 
      ii. No Significant changes in accounting policies during the year; 
      iii. No Instances of fraud of which we have become aware and the involvement therein, of    

the management or an employee having significant role in the Company’s internal 
control system over financial reporting. 

 
 
 

  For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors 

 Place Bhilwara   
         Sd/- Sd/- 

 
 Date 13.07.2020 (Praveen  Ostwal) (Sunil Kothari ) 

   Managing Director Whole Time Director 
 

   DIN 00412207 DIN 02056569 
 



Practicing Company SecretarySourabh Bapna Certificate of No.  19968 
Email Idsourabh.bapna12@gmail.com              Membership No.  A51505 

 Sourabh Bapna & Associates 
2-B-11,12 R C Vyas Colony, Bhilwara- 311001 Contact -9461264697 

 
CERTIFICATE ON COMPLIANCE WITH THE CONDITIONS 

OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

 

To The Members, 

Krishana Phoschem Limited 

We have examined the compliance conditions of corporate governance by Krishana Phoschem Limited for 

the Financial year ended March 31, 2020 as stipulated in Chapter IV of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 pursuant to the Listing Agreement of the said Company with 

stock exchanges.  

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the management. Our 

examination was in accordance with the Guidance Note on Certification of Corporate Governance, issued by 

the Institute of Company Secretaries of India and was limited to procedures and implementation thereof, 

adopted by the Company for ensuring compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance. It is neither 

an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,  

We certify that the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the 

SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor 

the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 

For Sourabh Bapna & Associates 

Company Secretaries 

       Sd/- 

(Sourabh Bapna) 

Proprietor 

C.P. No. 19968 

M. No. A51505 

Date:   13.07.2020 

Place:  Bhilwara 

mailto:SOURAbh.bapna12@gmail.com
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ANNEXURE VIII 

 
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS REPORTS 

 
INDUSTRY SCENARIO AND DEVELOPMENTS  
The Company is engaged in the manufacturing of Single Super Phosphate (SSP), Beneficiated 
Rock Phosphate (BRP) and Dyes Intermediates mainly H.Acid & Chemical products i.e. 
Sulphuric Acid, Oleum , Coloro Sulphonic Acid & Liquid SO3. Beneficiated Rock Phosphate and 
Sulphuric Acid is basic raw material for SSP. Naphthalene is basic raw material for H.Acid & 
Sulphur is basic raw material for production of Sulphuric Acid.  The industry saw good demand 
during current year as such KPL also saw a surge in SSP demand. 
 

SSP is used in for replenishing “P” (Phosphorus) in the soil which gets depleted steadily with each 
crop and Sulphuric Acid fulfil Sulphur deficiency in the soil & makes phosphate water soluble so 
it easily absorbable or used by plant. 

 
OPPORTUNITIES 
KPL is constantly looking to explore new opportunities within the existing business and also for 
new territories. With this in view KPL developed crop specific SSP   in fertilizers & chemical field           
The company has initiated steps on their ambitious expansion plan for DAP/ NP complex plant.  
We expect the plan to start production somewhere in 2022-23. Following action may prove to be 
beneficial for KPL - 

 Government Initiatives in form of reforms in re-imbursement of subsidy for fertilizer 
Industry making fertilizer production an attractive. 

 Substantial infrastructure Facilities being made available by Govt to facilitate expansion 
easier. 

 As DAP is in short supply with 70 % demand of DAP / NP complex being met from 
Import, DAP project will have ready market. 

 We plan to start seeding operation by starting trading in DAP to get a feel of the market 
 
 

THREATS 
 

 Competition from other Fertilizer manufacturing companies. 
 Inconsistent Government policies for fertilizer industry and many times delay in 

reimbursement of subsidy blocking good working capital. 
 Government Intervention. 
 Due to COVID pandemic, expect lower demand of chemicals 

 
 

SEGMENT WISE OR PRODUCT WISE PERFORMANCE 
Detail of Unit wise or Product wise performance is furnished separately in the Annual Report.  
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FUTURE OUTLOOK- PROJECT 
The company is planning to go for expansion by setting by DAP /NP complex fertilizers and the 
same is operational by March 2022. 
 
RISK & CONCERN  
Our business is mostly dependent upon the growth of agriculture and Agri-products which are 
subject to substantial risks faced by the weather condition in India. Delayed monsoon or less 
rainfall does affect our business, the dependence on Government policies which ultimately 
impact the profitability of the industry. These are all factors which are beyond the control of the 
private enterprise and would continue to be a challenge but fertilizer being a segment affecting 
farmers, Govt will always have farmer friendly policies. 
 
Chemical business exposed to cut throat global market completion from cheaper import.  
 
 
INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM  
The company has in place adequate internal control system, commensurate with the size, scale 
and complexity of the company. The internal auditors independently evaluate the adequacy of 
internal controls and concurrently audit the majority of the transactions in value terms.  
 
During the period under review the Internal Financial Control were tested and no reportable 
material weakness in the design or operation were observed. 
 
OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE 
During the year under review, your company has achieved the turnover of Rs.16294.73 Lakh and 
the net profit after tax for the current year stands at Rs. 1377.42 Lakh as against Rs. 1351.15 lakh 
in previous year.Net profit ratio down from 8.85 %to 8.46% in current year. 
 
KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS 

Sr. 
No 

Particulars of Ratio  31.03.2020 31.03.2019 Explanation for change in 
Ratios 

1 Debtors Turnover 6.85 8.30  Down due to lower realization 
from debtors & Govt. Subsidy 

2 Inventory Turnover 4.68 6.04 Decreased due to high stock 
holding to meet increased 
demand of SSP which was 40% 
more during the current year. 

3 Interest Coverage Ratio 

8.39 6.55 

Improved due to better 
performance and lower 
borrowing of the company.   

4 Current Ratio 2.82 1.49 Improved due to retention of 
almost maximum profits in 
business  

5 Debt Equity Ratio 0.26 0.55 Improved due to retention of 
almost maximum profits in 
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business and efficient 
management of borrowing. 

6 Operating Profit Margin (%) 12.75 12.51 Improved due to better 
performance of the company. 

7 Net Profit Margin (%) 8.46 8.85 Marginal down due to 
increased deferred tax liability. 

 

DETAILS PERTAINING TO RETURN ON NET-WORTH OF THE COMPANY 

Sr. No Particulars of Ratio  31.03.2020 31.03.2019 Explanation for change in 
Return on Net Worth 

1 Return on Net 
Worth 

11.04 12.32 Decreased due to lower profit in 
chemical division 

 

HUMAN RESOURCE DEVELOPMENT 
 
As a part of ongoing exercise of the restructuring and re-organization of the Company’s 
business, the Company undertakes periodic comprehensive reviews of its HR policies and 
amends the same suitably from time to time, to meet the e s merging business requirements and 
as per market trends. We have had cordial relations with the labour and staff throughout the 
year. 

 
 

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT 

There are certain statements in this report which the Company believes are forward looking. 
The forward looking statements stated in this report could significantly differ from the actual 
results due to certain risks and uncertainties, including but not limited to economic 
developments, Government actions, etc. 

   
     
     

 
  For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors 
     
                Sd/-                        Sd/- 

   (Praveen Ostwal) (Sunil Kothari) 
  Place Bhilwara (Raj)  Managing Director Whole Time Director 

& 
     Chief Financial Officer 

  Date 13.07.2020         DIN 00412207 DIN 02056569 
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ANNEXURE-IX 

 
 

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY 
(Pursuant to clause (e) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013)  

 
 
Introduction: 
This policy on nomination and remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and 
Senior Management has been formulated by the Committee, in compliances with Section 
178 of the Companies Act, 2013 read along with applicable rules thereto. 
 
Objectives of the Committee: 
The Committee shall: 
 

i. Formulate the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and 
independence of a director and recommend to the Board a policy relating to the 
remuneration of Directors, key managerial personnel and other employees. 
 
 

ii. Specify the manner for effective evaluation of performance of Board, its committees and 
individual directors (including Independent director) to be carried out either by the Board, 
by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee or by an independent external agency 
and review its implementation and compliance and to provide necessary report to the 
Board for further evaluation.  
 
 

 

iii. Devising a policy on Board diversity. 
 

iv. Identify persons who are qualified to become Director and persons who may be 
appointed in Key Managerial and Senior Management positions in accordance with the 
criteria laid down in this policy. 
 

v. To provide to Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management reward linked 
directly to their effort, performance, dedication and achievement relating to the 
Company’s operations. 
 

vi. To retain, motivate and promote talent and to ensure long term sustainability of 
talented managerial persons and create competitive advantage. 
 

vii. Ensure that level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient, 
relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate performance 
benchmarks. 
 

viii. To carry out any other function as is mandated by the Board from time to time and / 
or enforced by any statutory notification, amendment or modification, as may be 
applicable. 
 

ix. To perform such other functions as may be necessary or appropriate for the 
performance of its duties. 
 

x. To develop a succession plan for the Board and to regularly review the plan. 
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Definitions: 
 

• “Board”:-Board means Board of Directors of the Company. 
 

• “Director”:-Directors means Directors of the Company. 
 

• “Key Managerial Personnel”:- Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) means- 
(i) The Chief Executive Officer or the managing director or the manager; 
(ii) The Whole-Time Director; 
(iii) The Company Secretary; 
(iv) The Chief Financial Officer; and 
(v) Such other officer as may be prescribed under the applicable statutory provisions/ 
regulations 
 

• “Nomination and Remuneration Committee” shall mean a Committee of Board of 
Directors of the Company, constituted in accordance with the provisions of Section 178 of 
the Companies Act, 2013. 
 

• “Remuneration” means any money or its equivalent given or passed to any person for 
services rendered by him and includes perquisites as defined under the Income-tax Act, 
1961. 
 

Unless the context otherwise requires, words and expressions used in this policy and not 
defined herein but defined in the Companies Act, 2013 as may be amended from time to 
time shall have the meaning respectively assigned to them therein. 
 
Chairman: 
a. Chairman of the Committee shall be an Independent Director. 
 

b. Chairperson of the Company may be appointed as a member of the Committee but shall 
not be a Chairman of the Committee. 
 

c. In the absence of the Chairman, the members of the Committee present at the meeting 
shall choose one amongst them to act as Chairman. 
 

d. Chairman of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee meeting could be present 
at the Annual General Meeting or may nominate some other member to answer the 
shareholders’ queries. 
 
Frequency of Meetings: 
The Committee shall meet at such regular intervals as may be required. 
 
Committee Members’ Interests: 
a. A member of the Committee is not entitled to be present when his or her own 
remuneration is discussed at a meeting or when his or her performance is being evaluated. 
 

b. The Committee may invite such executives, as it considers appropriate, to be present at 
the meetings of the Committee. 
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Voting: 
(a) Matters arising for determination at Committee meetings shall be decided by a 
majority of votes of Members present and voting and any such decision shall for all 
purposes be deemed a decision of the Committee. 
 

(b) In the case of equality of votes, the Chairman of the meeting will have a casting vote. 
 
General Appointment Criteria: 
i. The Committee shall consider the ethical standards of integrity and probity, 
qualification, expertise and experience of the person for appointment as Director, KMP or 
at Senior Management level and accordingly recommend to the Board his / her 
appointment. 
 

ii. The Company should ensure that the person so appointed as Director/ Independent 
Director/ KMP/ Senior Management Personnel shall not be disqualified under the 
Companies Act, 2013, rules made there under or any other enactment for the time being in 
force. 
 

iii. The Director/ Independent Director/ KMP/ Senior Management Personnel shall be 
appointed as per the procedure laid down under the provisions of the Companies Act, 
2013, rules made there under, or any other enactment for the time being in force. 
 

iv. The Company shall not appoint or continue the employment of any person as 
Managing Director/Whole-time Director/Manager who has attained the age of seventy 
years. Provided that the term of the person holding this position may be extended beyond 
the age of seventy years with the approval of shareholders by passing a special resolution 
based on the explanatory statement annexed to the notice for such motion indicating the 
justification for extension of appointment beyond seventy years. 
 
Evaluation: 
The Committee shall carry out evaluation of performance of every Director, KMP and 
Senior Management at regular interval (yearly). 
 
Criteria for Evaluation of the Board: 
Following are the Criteria for evaluation of performance of the Board: 
 
1. Executive Directors: 
The Executive Directors shall be evaluated on the basis of targets/Criteria given to 
executive Directors by the Board from time to time 
 

2. Non-Executive Director: 
The Non-Executive Directors shall be evaluated on the basis of the following criteria i.e. 
whether they: 
 

(a) Act objectively and constructively while exercising their duties; 
 

(b) Exercise their responsibilities in a bona fide manner in the interest of the Company; 
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(c) Devote sufficient time and attention to their professional obligations for informed and 
balanced decision making; 
 

(d) Do not abuse their position to the detriment of the company or its shareholders or for 
the purpose of gaining direct or indirect personal advantage or advantage for any 
associated person; 
 

(e) Refrain from any action that would lead to loss of his independence 
 

(f) Inform the Board immediately when they lose their independence, 
 

(g) Assist the Company in implementing the best corporate governance practices. 
 

(h) Strive to attend all meetings of the Board of Directors and the Committees; 
 

(i) Participate constructively and actively in the committees of the Board in which they are 
chairpersons or members; 
 

(j) Strive to attend the general meetings of the Company; 
 

(k) Keep themselves well informed about the Company and the external environment in 
which it operates; 
 

(l) Do not to unfairly obstruct the functioning of an otherwise proper Board or committee 
of the Board; 
 

(m) Moderate and arbitrate in the interest of the Company as a whole, in situations of 
conflict between management and shareholder’s interest. 
 

(n) Abide by Company’s Memorandum and Articles of Association, Company’s policies 
and procedures including code of conduct, insider trading etc. 
 
Remuneration: 
The Committee will recommend the remuneration to be paid to the Managing Director, 
Whole Time Director, KMP and Senior Management Personnel to the Board for their 
approval. The level and composition of remuneration so determined by the Committee 
shall be reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and motivate directors, Key Managerial 
Personnel and Senior Management of the quality required to run the Company 
successfully. The relationship of remuneration to performance should be clear and meet 
appropriate performance benchmarks.  
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Deviations from this policy 
Deviations on elements of this policy in extraordinary circumstances, when deemed 
necessary in the interests of the Company, will be made if there are specific reasons to do 
so in an individual case. 

  
 

 
 
 
 

For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors 
     
   Sd/-  

Sd/- 
Place Bhilwara  (Praveen Ostwal) (Sunil Kothari) 
Date 13/07/2020  

Managing Director 
Whole Time 
Director 

                                                                                          (DIN: 00412207)               (DIN: 02056569) 
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      ANNEXURE-X 
 
 

ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY 
(Information pursuant to section 134 (3) (0) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Rule 8 & 9 of (Companies CSR 

Rule, 2014) 
 

1. A brief outline of the Company’s CSR policy, including overview of projects or programmes 
proposed to be undertaken and a reference to the web-link to the CSR policy and projects or 
programmes- 

 
In adherence to section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Corporate Social 
Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, the Board of Directors upon the recommendation of CSR 
Committee, in its Meeting held on 29th September, 2014, approved a CSR Policy of the Company. 
 
In accordance with the primary CSR philosophy of the group and the specified activities under 
Schedule VII to the Companies Act, 2013, the CSR activities of the Company cover certain thrust 
areas such as Tree Plantation, School Bags Distribution, Promoting Education, Environmental 
Sustainability, Eradicating Hunger and healthcare. 
 
The Corporate Social Responsibility Policy of the Company is available on the website of the 
Company http://www.krishnaphoschem.com.in the ‘Investor Handbook’ under ‘Investor 
Relation’. 
 
2. Composition of CSR Committee-  

CSR Committee shall consist of following persons: 
(1) Shri Pradeep Agarwal            Chairman 
(2) Smt. Ashish Kothari   Member 
(3) Shri Sunil Kothari   Member 

 
3. Average net profit of the company for last three financial years- 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

4. CSR Expenditure - CSR Expenditure for financial year 2019-20 of Company is 21.89 Lacs i.e. 
2% of Rs. 1094.36 lacs. 
 

 
5. Details of CSR Spent during the financial year 2019-2020 

(a) Total amount to be spent for the financial year Rs. 21.89 Lacs 
(b) Total amount  spent for the financial year Rs. 24.84 Lacs 

  Year   Net profit (In Lacs) 

  2018-2019   1966.30 

  2017-2018   668.44 

  2016-2017    648.35 

  Total   3283.09 

  Avg. Profit   1094.36 
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(c) Amount unspent for the financial year –   Nil 
(d) Manner in which the amount spent during the financial year is detailed below. 

          (Rs. InLacs) 

 (1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) 

S. 
No. 

CSR  
Projector  
activity 
 Identified 

Sector in 
which the 
Project is 

covered 

Projects or  
Programs  

(1) (1)Local  
Area or other  

(2) (2)Specify  
The  State and  
District where  
Projects or  
Programs was 
undertaken 

Amount 
outlay 
(budget) 
Project  
Programs 
Wise 

Amount 
Spent on  
The Projects 
or programs 
Sub heads- 

(1) Direct  
Expenditure 
On projects 
or programs 

(2)Overheads 

Cumulative 
expenditure  
Up to  the  
Reporting 
period 

Amount  
Spent : 
Direct or  
Through 
Implementing 
Agency  
 

1 Acharya 
Shree Bhikshu 
Seva Sansthan 

Charity / 
Donation 

 
Bhilwara (Raj.) 2.5 2.5 2.5 

Direct  

2  Akhil 
Bhartiya 
Terapanth 
Mahila 
Mandal 

Charity / 
Donation 

 
Bhilwara (Raj.) 

0.51 0.51 0.51 Direct  

3 Nirmala  
Devi  
Ostwal  
Seva Sansthan 

Charity / 
Donation 

 
Bhilwara (Raj.) 

18.71 18.71 18.71 Direct 

4 Terapanth 
Professional 
Forum 

Charity / 
Donation 

Bhilwara 
(Raj.) 

 

0.51 0.51 0.51 Direct  

5 Jain 
swetamber 
terapanthi 
sabha sanstha 

Charity / 
Donation 

Bhilwara 
(Raj.) 
 

0.11 0.11 0.11 Direct 

6 Tourism 
Council 
Samiti 
Khargone 

 

Charity / 
Donation 

Khargone 
(M.P.) 

2.5 2.5 2.5 Direct 

  Total  24.84 24.84 24.84  
 

 

6.In case the Company has failed to spend the 2% of the average net profit of the last 3 FYs 
or any part thereof, the Company shall provide the reason for not spending the amount in 
its Board Report-  
N.A. 
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7. Responsibility Statement- 
We hereby declare that implementation and monitoring of the CSR policy are in compliance 
with CSR objectives and policy of the Company. 

 

  
 

 
 

For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors 
    

 
 

   Sd/-   Sd/- 
Place Bhilwara  (Praveen Ostwal) (Sunil Kothari) 
Date 13/07/2020  

Managing Director 
Whole Time 
Director 

                                                                                       (DIN: 00412207)               (DIN: 02056569)
   



  

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
 
TO THE MEMBERS OF KRISHANA PHOSCHEM LIMITED 

 
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 

 
Opinion 

 
We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of KRISHANA PHOSCHEM LIMITED 
(the “Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2020, the Statement of Profit and 
Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of 
Cash Flows ended on that date, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory 
information (hereinafter referred to as the “standalone financial statements”). 

 
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (the 
“Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting 
Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting 
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally accepted in 
India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2020, the profit and total comprehensive 
income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date. 

 
Basis for Opinion 

 
We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on 
Auditing (“SA”s) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards 
are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial 
Statements section of our report. We are independent of  the  Company  in  accordance  with  the  Code  
of  Ethics  issued  by  the  Institute  of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”) together with the ethical   
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under the provisions 
of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in 
accordance with these requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence 
obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone 
financial statements. 

 
Key Audit Matters 

 
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our 
audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the 
context of our audit of the standalone financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion 
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the matters 
described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report. 
 
 
 



  

Description of Key Audit Matters 
 

The key audit matter  How the matter was addressed in our audit  

Adoption of Ind AS 116, Leases   

As described in Note 2 to the standalone financial 
statements, during the current year the Company 
has adopted Ind AS 116, Leases (‘Ind AS 116’), the 
new standard on lease accounting. The application 
and transition to this accounting standard is 
complex and is an area of focus in our audit.  
 
 
 
Ind AS 116 introduces a new lease accounting 
model wherein lessees are required to recognize a 
right-of-use (ROU) asset and a lease liability arising 
from a lease on its balance sheet. The lease 
liabilities are initially measured by discounting 
future lease payments during the lease term as per 
the contract/ arrangement. Adoption of the 
standard involves significant judgements and 
estimates including, determination of the discount 
rates and the lease term. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The Company adopted the full retrospective 
approach method to transition to Ind AS 116, 
consequently comparative financial information 
was not restated.  
 
 
 
 
Additionally, the standard mandates detailed 
disclosures with respect of transition.  
 
 
Refer Note 2 (O) and Note 3 to the standalone 
financial statements.  

Our audit procedures on adoption of Ind AS 116 
include the following:  
 
• Evaluated the design and implementation of the 
processes and internal controls relating to 
implementation of the new lease standard. 
 
• Based on our evaluation of the contractual 
agreements entered into and our knowledge of the 
business, assessed the appropriateness of the 
leases identified by the Company. 
 
• Involved our internal valuation specialists to 
evaluate the reasonableness of the discount rates 
used in computing the lease liabilities. 
 
• On transition to Ind AS 116 with effect from 1 
April 2019: 
 

 Evaluated the method of transition and 
related adjustments. 
 

 Tested completeness of the lease data by 
reconciling the Company’s operating lease 
commitments as at 31 March 2019 to data 
used in computing the ROU asset and 
related lease liabilities.  

 

 Selected samples using the statistical 
sampling approach. For such samples 
selected, we assessed the key terms and 
conditions of each lease with the underlying 
lease contracts, evaluated computation of 
lease liabilities and challenged the key 
estimates such as discount rates and the 
lease term.  

 

• For new / modified leases, tested the lease 
accounting and estimates/ judgments used by the 
Company.  



  

  
• Evaluated the appropriateness of the accounting 
policy, disclosures provided under the new lease 
standard and assessed the completeness and 
mathematical accuracy of the relevant disclosures, 
including those related to transition. 
 

 
 
Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon 

 
The  Company’s  Board  of  Directors  is  responsible  for  the  other  information.  The other information 
comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board’s Report including 
Annexures to Board’s Report, Business Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance and Shareholder’s 
Information, but does not include the standalone financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. 

 
Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not 
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

 
In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and,  in  doing  so,  consider  whether  the  other  information  is  materially  inconsistent  
with  the  standalone  financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or 
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 

 
If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other 
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 

 
Management’s Responsibilities for the Standalone Financial Statements 

 
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with 
respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the 
financial position, financial performance, including other comprehensive income, changes in equity and 
cash flows of the Company in accordance with  the  Ind  AS  and  other  accounting  principles  generally  
accepted  in  India.  This  responsibility  also  includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in 
accordance  with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing 
and detecting frauds   and   other   irregularities;   selection   and   application   of appropriate accounting   
policies;   making  judgments and estimates   that   are   reasonable  and prudent; and design, 
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively 
for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and 
presentation of the standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the 
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going 
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate 
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 
 
The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process. 

 
 



  

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 
 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as 
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s 
report that includes our opinion.  Reasonable  assurance  is  a  high  level  of  assurance,  but  is  not  a  
guarantee  that  an  audit  conducted  in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement 
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or  error  and  are  considered  material  if,  individually  
or  in  the  aggregate,  they  could  reasonably  be  expected  to influence the economic decisions of users 
taken on the basis of these standalone financial statements. 
 
As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 
skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 
 
• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether 

due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit 
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting 
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may 
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal 
control. 

 
• Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section  143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also 
responsible for expressing our opinion  on  whether  the  Company  has  adequate  internal  financial  
controls  system  in  place  and  the  operating effectiveness of such controls. 

 
• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 

estimates and related disclosures made by the management. 
 
• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, 

based on the audit  evidence  obtained,  whether  a  material  uncertainty  exists  related  to  events  
or  conditions  that  may  cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going 
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our 
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures 
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up 
to the date of our auditor’s report.  However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to 
cease to continue as a going concern. 

 
• Evaluate  the  overall  presentation,  structure  and  content  of  the  standalone  financial  statements,  

including  the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying 
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

 
Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that, individually or 
in aggregate, makes  it  probable  that  the  economic  decisions  of  a  reasonably  knowledgeable  user  
of  the  standalone  financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and 
qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; 
and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the standalone financial statements. 
We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned 
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 
internal control that we identify during our audit. 

 



  

We  also  provide  those  charged  with  governance  with  a  statement  that  we  have  complied  with  
relevant  ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships 
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, 
related safeguards. 

 
From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that 
were of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period and 
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or 
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we 
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences 
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such 
communication. 

 
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

 
1) As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that: 
 

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 

 
b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far 

as it appears from our examination of those books. 
 

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, 
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in 
agreement with the relevant books of account. 

 
d) In  our  opinion,  the  aforesaid  standalone  financial  statements  comply  with  the  Ind AS specified 

under Section 133 of the Act. 
 

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2020 taken 
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2020 from 
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act. 

 
f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the 

Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in 
“Annexure A”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating 
effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting. 
 

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the 
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended: 
 
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the 
provisions of section 197 of the Act. 
 

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best 
of our information and according to the explanations given to us: 

 
i) The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position; 

 



  

ii) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivatives contracts for which 
there were any material foreseeable losses; 

 
iii) There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor 

Education and Protection Fund by the Company and its subsidiary companies incorporated in 
India. 

 
2) As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central 

Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure B” a statement on the matters 
specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order. 

 

For M/s. Rajneesh Kanther & Associates 
Chartered Accountants 

(Firm’s Registration No. 021262C) 
 
Place: Bhilwara 
Date: July 13, 2020  Rajneesh Kanther 

         Partner 
 (Membership No. 102162)



  

ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
(Referred to in paragraph 1 (f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our 
report to the Members of KRISHANA PHOSCHEM LIMITED of even date) 

 
Report on the Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of 
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) 

 
We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of KRISHANA PHOSCHEM 
LIMITED (the “Company”) as of March 31, 2020 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial 
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 

 
Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

 
The Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial 
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company 
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal 
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the 
“ICAI”). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its 
business, including adherence to respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the 
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, 
and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013. 

 
Auditor’s Responsibility 

 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial 
reporting of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance 
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the 
ICAI and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the 
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note 
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established 
and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 

 
Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal 
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial 
controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and 
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The 
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material 
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting. 
 
 



  

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 
 

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable 
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for 
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A  company's  internal  
financial  control  over  financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the 
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,  accurately  and  fairly  reflect  the  transactions  and  
dispositions  of  the  assets  of  the  company;  (2)  provide reasonable assurance that transactions are 
recorded  as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only 
in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide 
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or 
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. 

 
Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

 
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the 
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to 
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial 
controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control 
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of 
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

 
Opinion 

 
In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company 
has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and 
such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2020, 
based on the internal financial control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company 
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal 
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the ICAI. 
 
 

For M/s. Rajneesh Kanther & Associates 
Chartered Accountants 

(Firm’s Registration No. 021262C) 
 
 
 
Place: Bhilwara 
Date: July 13, 2020 

Rajneesh Kanther 
Partner 

(Membership No. 102162) 



  

ANNEXURE ‘B’ TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
 

(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our 
report to the Members of KRISHANA PHOSCHEM LIMITED of even date) 

 
1) In respect of the Company’s fixed assets: 
 

a) The  Company  has  maintained  proper  records  showing  full  particulars,  including  quantitative  
details  and situation of fixed assets. 

 
b) The Company has a regular program of physical verification of its property, plant and equipment, 

by which all property, plant and equipment are verified in a phased manner over a period of three 
years. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical verification is reasonable having regard to the size 
of the Company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to the program, certain property, plant and 
equipment were physically verified during the year. According to the information and explanations 
given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification. 

 
c) According to the information and explanations given to us, the records examined by us and based 

on the examination of the conveyance deeds / registered sale deed provided to us, we report that, 
the title deeds, comprising all the immovable properties of land and buildings which are freehold, 
are held in the name of the Company as at the balance sheet date. In respect of immovable 
properties taken on lease and disclosed as right-of-use-assets in the standalone financial 
statements, the lease agreements are in the name of the Company. 

 
2) As per the information and explanation given to us, the inventories have been physically verified during 

the year by the management at reasonable intervals. No material discrepancy was noticed on such 
verification. 

 
3) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has granted unsecured loans 

to one body corporate, covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 
2013, in respect of which: 

 
a) The terms and conditions of the grant of such loans are, in our opinion, prima facie, not prejudicial 

to the Company’s interest. 
 

b) The  schedule  of  repayment  of  principal  and  payment  of  interest  has  been  stipulated  and  
repayments  or receipts of principal amounts and interest have been regular as per stipulations. 

 
c) There is no overdue amount remaining outstanding as at the year-end. 

 
4) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has 

complied with the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the Act in  respect of grant of loans, making 
investments and providing guarantees and securities, as applicable. 

 
5) The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public within the meaning of the directives 

issued by the Reserve Bank of India, provisions of sections 73 to 76 of the Act, any other relevant 
provisions of the Act and the relevant rules framed thereunder. 

 
6) We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company pursuant to the rules 

made by the Central Government for the maintenance of cost records under section 148 of the Act, 
and are of the opinion that prima facie, the prescribed accounts and records have been made and 
maintained. However, we have not carried out a detailed examination of the same. 



  

 
7) According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of statutory dues: 
 

a) The Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues, including 
Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax, Goods and Service Tax, Customs Duty, 
Cess and other material statutory dues applicable to it with the appropriate authorities. 

 
b) There  were  no  undisputed  amounts  payable  in  respect  of  Provident  Fund,  Employees’  State  

Insurance, Income Tax, Goods and Service Tax, Customs Duty, Cess and other material statutory 
dues in arrears as at March 31, 2020 for a period of more than six months from the date they 
became payable. 

 
c) Details of dues of Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Excise Duty and Value Added Tax which have 

not been deposited as at March 31, 2020 on account of dispute are given below: 
 
 

Name of the statue Nature of dues Amount  
(Rs. In Lakhs) 

Period to which the 
amount relates 
(Financial Year) 

Forum where dispute 
is pending 

Madhya Pradesh Value 
Added Tax Act, 2002 

Sales tax 7.97 2016-17 Assistant commissioner 
of Commercial Taxes, 

Madhya Pradesh 

 
 
8) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not 

defaulted in the repayment of loans or borrowings to banks. The Company did not have any 
outstanding loans or borrowings from financial institutions or Government and there are no dues to 
debenture holders during the year. 

 
9) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company did not 

raise any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) and 
term loans during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3(ix) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

 
10) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, no 

material fraud by the Company or on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or 
reported during the year. 

 
11) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and based on examination 

of the records of the Company, the Company has paid/provided managerial remuneration in 
accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule 
V to the Act. 

 
12) According to the information and explanations given to us, in our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi 

Company and hence reporting under clause 3 (xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 
 
13) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is in 

compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 where applicable, for all transactions 
with the related parties and the details of related party transactions have been disclosed in the 
standalone financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards. 

 



  

14) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records 
of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares 
or fully or partly paid convertible debentures and hence reporting under clause 3 (xiv) of the Order is 
not applicable to the Company. 

 
15) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records 

of the Company, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its Directors or 
persons connected to its directors and hence provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are 
not applicable to the Company. 

 
16) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not required to be 

registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. 
 

For M/s. Rajneesh Kanther & Associates 
Chartered Accountants 

(Firm’s Registration No. 021262C) 
                                                                                                                                            Sd/- 
 
 
Place: Bhilwara 
Date: July 13, 2020 

Rajneesh Kanther 
Partner 

(Membership No. 102162) 
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